ORIGINAL 09063

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT RECEIVED

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

0CT 2 9 2009

This Section must be completed for all projects.

HEALTH FACILITIES &
Facility/Project Identification SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
Facility Name: Roseland Community Hospital :
Street Address: 45 W. 111" Street
City and Zip Code: Chicago 60628
County: Cook Health Service Area Health Planning Area: A-03

Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Roseland Community Hospital Association
Address: 45 W. 111" Street, Chicago, IL. 60628

Name of Registered Agent: Mindy Mylecki

Name of Chief Executive Officer. Anthony Puorrg

CEO Address: 45 W. 111" Street, Chicago, IL 60628
Telephone Number: (773) 995-3012
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APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF
! THE APPLICATIONFORM.. _ _— _ o o o o

Type of Ownership

] Non-profit Corporation {1 Partnership

O For-profit Corporation {1 Governmental

O Limited Liability Company {1 Sole Proprietorship O
Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an Ilfinois certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and

address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

Primary Contact

[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period]
Name: Anthony Puorro

Title: CEQ

Company Name: Roseland Community Hospital

Address; 45 W. 111" Street, Chicago, IL 60628

Telephone Number: (773) 985-3012

£-mail Address: apuorro@roselandhospital.org

Fax Number: (773) 995-0152

Additional Contact

[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]
Name: Biliie J. Paige

Title: Consultant

Company Name: Shea, Paige & Rogal, Inc.

Address: 547 S. LaGrange Road, LaGrange, IL 60523

Telephone Number: (708) 482-4820

E-mail Address: stargazer23@msn.com

Fax Number: (708) 482-1091




Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence subsequent to permit issuance]

Name: Douglas Beck

Title: Director

Company Name: Roseland Community Hospital
Address: 45 W. 111" Street, Chicago, IL 60628
Telephone Number: {(773) 985-3089

E-mail Address: dbeck@roselandhospital.org

Fax Number: (773) 995-1062

Site Ownership

[Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: Roseland Community Hospital Association
Address of Site Owner; 45 W. 111" Street, Chicago, IL 60628

Street Address or Legal Descrlption of Site: SAME
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Operating Identity/Licensee
[Provide this information for each applicable facility, and insert after this page.]

Exact Legal Name:

Address:

] Non-profit Corporation J Partnership

OJ For-profit Corporation J Governmental

OJ Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship O
Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and
address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

Organizational Relationships
Provide (for each co-applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of
any person who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person is participating in
the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any
financial contrlbutlon
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] APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT—3 N NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE
"OF_THE APPLICATION FORM. o e )

Flood Plain Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of lllinois Executive Order
#2005-5 pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of
the flood plain requirements please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any
identified floodplain areas. Fioodplain maps can beprinted at www.FEMA.gov or
www.illinoisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a readable format. In addition please
provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the requirements of lfinois Executive
Order #2005 5 (http waw idph.state.il. us!about!hfpb htm).
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Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements

[Refer to application instructions.]
Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources

Preservation Act.

'APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS

i OF THE APPLICATION FORM

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
[Check those applicable - refer to Part 1110.40 and Parl 1120.20(b))

Part 1120 Applicability or Classification:
Part 1110 Classification; [Check one only.]
Substantive O Part 1120 Not Applicable

O Category A Project
0 Non-substantive & Category B Project

[0 DHS or DVA Project

2. Project Outline
In the chart below, indicate the proposed action(s) for each clinical service area involved by writing the

number of beds, stations or key rooms involved.
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Medical/Surgical, Obstetric, Pediatric and Intensive Care
Acute/Chronic Mental lliness 30
MNeonatal Intensive Care

Open Heart Surgery

Cardiac Catheterization

In-Center Hemodialysis

Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery

General Long Term Care

Specialized Long Term Care

Seiected Organ Transplantation

Kidney Transplantation

Subacute Care Hospital Model

Post Surgical Recovery Care Center

Children’s Community-Based Health Care Center
Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center
Long Term Acute Care Hospital Bed Projects

Clinical Service Areas Other Than Categories of Service.

. Surgery

. Ambulatory Care Services {organized as a service)
- Diagnostic & Interventional Radiology/imaging

. Therapeutic Radiology

. Laboratory

. Pharmacy

. QOccupational Therapy

. Physical Therapy

. Major Medical Equipment

Freestanding Emergency Center Medical Services
Master Design and Related Projects
Mergers, Consolidations and Acquisitions
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3. Narrative Description
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Provide in the space below, a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in State
Board defined terms. NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a slreet address,
include a legal description of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project's classification as
substantive or non-substantive.

The Roseland Community Hospital project is for the addition of 30 acute mental illness
beds. This is a new service for the hospital which currently has 162 beds. The project will
include the renovation of 9,918 sq. fi. and will be funded by cash.

This is a substantive project because it would add a new service to the facility.

This is the new application for Roseland Community Hospital. Roseland has had to
reapply because of unanticipated problems with the electrical and HVAC systems (due to
the age of its building) which drove the costs to more than 5% of the approved project

amount.




Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Complete the following table listing all costs {refer to Part 1120.1 10) associated with the project.
When a !
project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other

means, the fair
market or dollar value {refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the
estimated project
cost. If the project contains non-clinical components that are not related to the provision of health
care, complete the second column of the table below. See 20 ILCS 3960 for definition of non-
clinical. Note, the use and sources of funds must equal.

Project Costs and Sources of Funds
USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NON-CLINICAL TOTAL
Preplanning Costs
Site Survey and Soil Investigation
Site Preparation

Off Site Work

New Construction Contracts

Modernization Contracts 2,900,000 2,900,000
Contingencies 180,000 180,000
Architectural/Engineering Fees 220,000 220,000
Consulting and Other Fees

Movable or Other Equipment (not in 100,000 100,000

construction contracts)

Bond Issuance Expense (project related)

Net Interest Expense During Construction 90 000 90,000
{project related) '

Fair Market Value of Leased Space or
Equipment

Other Costs To Be Capitalized

Acquisition of Building or Other Property
(excluding land)

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS 3,450,000 3,490,000

SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NON-CLINICAL TOTAL
Cash and Securities 740,000 740,000
Pledges

Gifts and Bequests

Bond Issues {project related)
Mortgages - Loan 2,750,000 2,750,000
Leases (fair market value)
Governmental Appropriations

Grants

Other Funds and Sources
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 3,490,000 3,490,000
NOTE: ITEMIZATION OF EACH LINE ITEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT ATTACHMENT-7, IN NLII"-HE.F.{-Ié.:SEdUEN_fIAL.ORDER AFTER
THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. - - T e L e T
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Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the

project that will be
or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project [ Yes M No
Purchase Price:  §
Fair Market Value: $

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service
™ Yes 1 No

I yes, provide the doliar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including
operating deficits) through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds th
target utilization specified in Part 1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit costis $ __696,671 .

Project Status and Completion Schedules
Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:

[] None or not applicable [] Preliminary

M Schematics [ ] Final Working
' Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): 04/30/11

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to obligation (refer to Part
1130.140):

[] Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.
[] Project obligation is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the
contingent “certification of obligation” document, highlighting any language related to

CON contingencies.
M Project obligation will occur after permit issuance.

State Agency Submittals
Are the following submittals up to date as applicable:
MCancer Registry

MAPORS
FAll formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports been

submitted
Al reports regarding outstanding permits




Cost Space Requirements

Provide in the following format, the department/area GSF and cost. The sum of the department
costs MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any space is being reallocated for
a different purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the department's or area’s portion
of the surrounding circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated space.

Amount of Proposed Total Gross
Square Feet That Is:

New As Vacated

Dept. / Area Cost Existing | Proposed Const. Modernized Is Space

CLINICAL
Medical
Surgical
Intensive Care
Diagnostic
Radiology

AMI 3,490,000 0 10,973 10,973
Total Clinical 3,490,000 0 10,973 10,973

Gross Square Feet

NON
CLINICAL
Administrative
Parking _

Gift Shop

Total Non-
clinical
TOTAL 3,490,000 10,973 10,973
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Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization

Complete the following chart, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a
part of the project and insert following this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization
data for the latest Calendar Year for which the data are available. Any bed capacity
discrepancy from the inventory will result in the application being deemed incomplete.

FACILITY NAME: Roseland Community Hospital

CITY: Chicago

REPORTING PERIOD DATES:

From: 01/01/08

to: 12/31/08

Category of Service Authorized | Admissions | Patient Days Bed Proposed
Beds Changes Beds
132 4,708 20,742 132
Medical/Surgical
20 496 1,273 20
Obstetrics
Pediatrics
10 238 1,898 10
Intensive Care
Comprehensive Physical
Rehabilitation
30

Acute/Chronic Mental lliness

Neonatal Intensive Care

General Long Term Care

Specialized Long Term Care

Long Term Acute Care

Other ((identify)

TOTALS:




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- July 2009 Edition

CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The authorized
representative(s) are:

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o in the case of a limited liahility company, any two of its managers or members {(or the sole manger or
member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or more
general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist}; and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lilinois Health Facilities Planning Act. The
undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for permit on
behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and information provided
herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or her knowledge and belief.

The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required for this application is sent

herewith or will be paid upon request.
%{-— ‘ W M ﬂf : / LL*-Q

SIGNATURE U N SIGNATURE
ANTHONY PUORRO RONALD L. KROL
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarlzatlon Notarization:

Subs ibed and sworn to befgre me Subscgibed and sworp tg before me
thls & — day of (Zﬁﬁ & }93 7 this day of V7 7

Ak Oyt Sty
Signature of Notary / 0 Signature oyﬂoﬂ

Seal Seal

OFFICIAL SEAL

MABEL Y JONES

NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:04120/10

PP AP,

*Insert EXACT legal name of the applicant




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- July 2009 Edition

SECTION IlI. - PROJECT PURPOSE, BACKGROUND AND ALTERNATIVES - INFORMATION

REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project costs.

Criterion 1110.230 - Project Purpose, Background and Alternatives

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

1.

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

A listing of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, certification
and accreditation identification numbers, if applicable.

A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facilty owned and/or operated by the
applicant during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

Authorization pemitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the
information submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH or other State agencies; the
licensing or certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally
recognized accreditation organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an
abandonment or withdrawal of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utiized to fulfil the information
requirements of this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest the information has been
previously provided, cite the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have
occurred regarding the information that has been previously provided. The applicant is able to submit
amendments to previously submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.

1.

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant’s definition.

|dentify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable and appropriate for
the project. [See 1110.230(b) for examples of documentation.]

Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation.

Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the
population’s health status and well-being.

Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to
achieving the stated goals.

For projects involving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded. For facility projects, include
statements of age and condition and regulatory citations. For equipment being replaced, include repair and
maintenance records.




PURPOSE OF PROJECT

As stated in the many letters of referral and support, this project is being proposed, as itwas |
Project 08-055, in order to fill a void on the far south side of Chicago. It is to respond to an
unrelenting appeal from parents and other health care facilities as to placements for children and
adolescents requiring inpatient mental illness treatment.

This was the purpose of Project 08-055 which this application replaces. We should also note
that the situation for placement of young people continues to deteriorate in Planning Area A-03.

It was devastating that the age and condition of the Roseland building was such that a
substantial addition of funds is required to bring the proposed unit up to code. Fortunately, since
previously the area was not being used for patient care, there were no regulatory citations.

Nonetheless, because of the urgency to provide the best patient care, Roseland is prepared to
expend its limited resources to complete this needed venture.

Example: the recent tragic murder of a high school student on the far south side of Chicago
caused an outcry for such services.

Itis a void that Roseland hopes to fill without impact on any other health care facilities (see

support and referral letters in Attachment 12).

!




ALTERNATIVES TO THE PROJECT

Roseland Community Hospital considered the following alternatives:

- Do nothing.
- Affiliate with another hospital which has an acute mental illness
unit specializing in adolescent and childhood mental illness
- Adding an acute mental iliness service to Roseland Community Hospital

Do Nothing

Roseland considered and rejected this altenative. There continues to be a steady
inquiry from both parents and other health care facilities as to whether Roseland
has any knowledge of where adolescents and children who need inpatient mental
illness treatment can be accommodation on the South Side of Chicago. Roseland
has had to respond in the negative. To do nothing would just continue an what is
becoming a most untenable situation (see support letters).

Affiliate With Another Hospital

The reason this application is before you is that there are no other hospitals that
have an acute mental illness service can accommodate these patients. We re-
ceive calls from them as well (see support letters).

Add an Acute Mental [llness Service

The foregoing discussion of the first two options detail the reason that we have
decided, through our experience, that there exists an unfulfilled need for additional
acute mental illness beds on the South Side of Chicago. Therefore, because of that
empirical experience, we have determined that a unit of 30 beds is appropriate and
will provide the access that many in the community do not have. Evenifa bed is
available from time to time, most of the people we see or that communicate with
us would travel an unacceptable distance in order to seek the treatment their children
require. Therefore, many of these children are not receiving the appropriate inpatient
service which they need (see support letters).
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SECTION IV - PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.234 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:
SI1ZE OF PROJECT:

1 Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is
necessary and not excessive.

2. If the gross square footage exceeds the GSF standards in Appendix B, justify the
discrepancy by documenting one of the following::

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by
clinical or operational needs, as supported by published data or studies;

b. The existing facility’s physical configuration has constraints or impediments and
requires an architectural design that results in a size exceeding the standards of

Appendix B;

c. The project involves the conversion of existing bed space that results in excess
square footage.
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APPEND DOGUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-13, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE

| OF THE APPLICATION FORM.
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PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services,
functions or equipment for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or
occupancy targets in 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100.

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment
shall meet or exceed the utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B.
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APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-14, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE
OF THE. 1% 2 i o i R e D R .
. APPLICATION FORM. '
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UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE: N/A

Provide the following information:
1. Total gross square footage of the proposed shell space;

2. The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF tot be allocated to
each department, area or function;

3. Evidence that the shell space is being constructed due to
a. Requirements of governmental or certification agencies; or
b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas
proposed to occupy the shell space.

4. Provide:
a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year period for which data are

available; and

/3




C. Criterion 1110.730 - Acute Mental liiness and Chronic Mental lliness

1.

@ Acute Mental
Nness

Category of Service

In addition to addressing the Category of Service Review Criteria for ALL
category of service projects [SECTION Vil], applicants proposing to establish,
expand and/or modernize Acute/Chronic Mental Iliness must submit the
following information:

Indicate bed capacity changes by Service: Indicate # of beds changed by
action(s).

# Existing # Proposed #to # to #to
Beds Beds Establish Expand Modernize

lliness

[} Chronic Mental

3.

READ the applicable review criteria outlined below:

APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA Establish | Expand | Modernize

1110.730(b)(1) - Planning Area Need - 77 |Il. Adm. Code 1100 X

(formula calculation)

1110.730(b)(2) - Planning Area Need - Service to Planning X X
Area
Residents
1110.730(b)(3) - Planning Area Need - Service Demand - X
Establishment of Category of Service
1110.730(b)(4) - Planning Area Need - Service Demand - X
Expansion
of Existing Category of Service
1110.730(b)}(5) - Planning Area Need - Service Accessibility X
1110.730(c)(1) - Unnecessary Duplication of Services X
1110.730(c)(2) - Maldistribution X
| 1110.730(c)(3) - Impact of Project on Other Area Providers X
|
1110.730(d¥{1) - Deteriorated Facilities X
1110.730(d)(2) - Documentation X
1110.730(d)(3) - Documentation Related to Cited Problems X
1110.730(d){(4) - Occupancy X
1110.730(e(1)) - Staffing Availability X X
1110.730(f) - Performance Requirements X X X
1110.730(g) - Assurances X X

14




SECTION VII. - CATEGORY OF SERVICE - REVIEW CRITERIA

1. This Section is applicable to all projects proposing establishment, expansion or modernization of
ALL categories of service that are subject to CON review, as provided in the Hlinois Health
Facilities Planning Act [20 ILCS 3960], WITH THE EXCEPTION OF;

*  General Long Term Care;

»  Subacute Care Hospital Model;

«  Postsurgical Recovery Care Center Alternative Health Care Model;

= Children’s Community-Based Health Care Center Alternative Health Care Model;

and
= Community-Based Residential Rehabifitation Center Alternative Health Care

Model.

If the project involves any of the above-referenced categories of service, referto "
SECTION VIIl-  Service Specific Review Criteria" for applicable review criteria, and submit
all necessary documentation for each service involved..

2. READ THE APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA FOR EACH OF THE CATEGORIES OF SERVICE
INVOLVED.[Refer to SECTION VIIl regarding the applicable criteria for EACH action
proposed, for EACH category of service invoived.]

3. After identifying the applicable review criteria for each category of service involved (see the
charts in Section Vi), provide the following information, AS APPLICABLE TO THE

CRITERIA THAT MUST BE ADDRESSED:

A. Planning Area Need - Formula Need Calculation:

1, Complete the requested information for each category of service involved:
Refer to 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100 for information concerning planning areas, bed/station/key room
deficits and occupancy/utilization standards.

Planning Area A-03

Category of Service No. of HFSRB Part 1100
Beds/Stations/Key Inventory Occupancy/Utilization
Rooms Proposed Need or Standard
Excess
Acute Mental lllness 30 55 (need) 85%

Using the formatting above:
2. Indicate the number of beds/stations/key rooms proposed for each category of service.

3.  Document that the proposed number of beds/stations/key rooms is in conformance with the

projected
deficit specified in 77 Ill. Adm. Code 1100.

4. Document that the proposed number of beds/stations/key rooms wili be in conformance with the
applicable occupancy/utitization standard(s) specified in lll. Adm. Code 1100.

B. Planning Area Need - Service to the Planning Area Residents:

5. If establishing or expanding beds/stations/key rooms, document that the primary purpose of the
project will be to provide necessary heaith care to the residents of the area in which the proposed
project will be physically located (i.e., the planning or geographical service area, as applicable), for
each category of service included in the project. :

6. If expanding an existing category of service, provide patient origin information for all admissions for
the last 12-month period, verifying that at least 50% of admissions were residents of the area. For
all other projects, document that at least 50% of the projected patient volume will be from residenis

of the area.
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"APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-20,"IN NU
OF THE APPLICATION FORM. . . T
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C. Service Demand - Expansion of an Existing Category of Service

* See Attachment 20

Document "Historical Service Demand” and either “Projected Referrals” or “Project Service Demand -
Based on Rapid Population Growth" :

1. Historical Service Demand
Category of Service Board Year One Year Two
Occupancy/Utilzation  Indicate CY or FY Indicate CY or FY

Standards
[Indicate standards
for the planning area.)

a.  As formatted above, document that the average annual occupancy/utilization rate has equaled
or exceeded occupancy standards for the category of service, as specified in 77 lll. Adm. Code
1100, for each of the latest two years;

b. If patients have been referred to other facilities in order to receive the subject services, provide
documentation of the referrals, including: patient origin by zip code; name and specialty of
referring physician; and name and location of the recipient hospital, for each of the latest two

years

2. Projected Referrals
An applicant proposing to establish a category of service or establish a new hospital shall submit

physician
referral letters containing ALL of the information outlined in subsection(b)(4) of the criteria for the subject

service(s).
3, Projected Service Demand — Based on Rapid Population Growlh

If a projected demand for service is based upon rapid population growth in the applicant facility's
existing market area (as experienced annually within the latest 24-month period), the projected service
demand must be determined, as specified in the criterion titled “Projecled Service Demand-Based on
Rapid Population Growth" of the criteria for the subject service(s).
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{ APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-20, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE

D. Service Demand - Expansion of an Existing Category of Service N/A

Document “Historical Service Demand” and either “Projected Referrals" or “Project Service

Demand -
Based on Rapid Population Growth" :

1. Historical Service Demand
Category of Service Board Occupancy/ Year One
Utilzation Standards (ndicate CY or FY

[Indicate standards for
the planning area.]

Year Two
Indicate CY or FY

/&




T. Financial Feasibility

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120.

REVIEW CRITERIA RELATING TO FINANCIAL FEASIBILITY (FIN)

Does the applicant {or the entity that is responsible for financing the project or is responsibl
assuming the applicant’s debt obligations in case of default) have a bond rating of "A" or bette

Yes O No B

If yes is indicated, submit proof of the bond rating of “A” or better (that is less than two years
old) from Fitch’s, Moody's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies and go to Section XXVI.
If no is indicated, submit the most recent three years’ audited financial statements
including the following:

1. Balance sheet 3. Change in fund balance

2. Income statement 4. Change in financial position

A. Criterion 1120.210(a), Financial Viability
1. Viability Ratios

If proof of an “A” or better bond rating has not been provided, read the criterion and
complete the following table providing the viability ratios for the most recent three
years for which audited financial statements are available. Category B projects
must also provide the viability ratios for the first full fiscal year after project
completion or for the first fult fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds
target utilization (per Part 1100), whichever is later.

Provide Data fbf Projects Category A or Category .B (last Category B
Classified as: ; three years) (Projected)

Enter Historical and/or Projected 2006 2007 2008 2012
Years: ' '
Current Ratio B B v T
Net Margin Percentage -12.8 +2.8 5.5 14.4
Percent Debt to Total Capitalization -560% 576% 144% 70
Projected Debt Service Coverage N/A N/A N/A 9.2 .
Days Cash on Hand 3 23 32 67 '
Cushion Ratio N/A N/A N/A 2.1

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing
the calculation and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements.
Complete a separate table for each co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.
Insert the worksheets after this page.

2. Variance

Compare the viability ratios provided to the Part 1120 Appendix A review
standards. If any of the standards for the applicant or for any co-applicant are not
met, provide documentation that a person or organization will assume the legal
responsibility to meet the debt obligations should the applicant default. The person
or organization must demonstrate compliance with the ratios in Appendix A when
proof of a bond rating of “A” or better has not been provided.

REVIEW CRITERIA RELATING TO FINANCIAL FEASIBILITY (FIN)
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B.

C. Criterion 1120.210(c), Operating Start-up Costs

Criterion 1120.210(b}, Availability of Funds

If proof of an “A" or better bond rating has not been provided, read the criterion and
document that sufficient resources are available to fund the project and refated costs
including operating start-up costs and operating deficits. Indicate the dollar amount to
be provided from the following sources:

740,000 Cash & Securities
Provide statements as to the amount of cash/securities available for the

project. Identify any security, its value and availability of such funds.
Interest to be earned or depreciation account funds to be earned on any
asset from the date of application submission through project completion
are also considered cash.

Pledges
For anticipated pledges, provide a letter or report as to the doltar amount
feasible showing the discounted value and any conditions or action the
applicant would have to take to accomplish goal. The time period,
historical fund raising experience and major contributors also must be
specified.

Gifts and Bequests
Provide verification of the dollar amount and identify any conditions of
the source and timing of its use.

2,750,000  Debt Financing (indicate type(s) loan

For general obligation bonds, provide amount, terms and conditions,
including any anticipated discounting or shrinkage} and proof of passage
of the required referendum or evidence of governmental authority to
issue such bonds;
For revenue bonds, provide amount, terms and conditions and proof of
securing the specified amount;
For mortgages, provide a letter from the prospective lender attesting to
the expectation of making the loan in the amount and time indicated;
For leases, provide a copy of the lease including all terms and conditions
of the lease including any purchase options.

Governmental Appropriations
Provide a copy of the appropriation act or ordinance accompanied by a
statement of funding availability from an official of the governmental unit.
If funds are to be made available from subsequent fiscal years, provide a
resolution or other action of the governmental unit attesting to such
future funding.

Grants
Provide a letter from the granting agency as to the avaitability of funds in
terms of the amount, conditions, and time or receipt.

Other Funds and Sources
Provide verification of the amount, terms and conditions, and type of any
other funds that will be used for the project.

3,490,000 TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

If proof of an A" or better bond rating has not been provided, indicate if the project is
classified as a Category B project that involves establishing a new facility or a new
category of service? Yes M No O. If yes is indicated, read the criterion and provide
in the space below the amount of operating start-up costs (the same as reported in
Section | of this application) and provide a description of the items or components that
comprise the costs. Indicate the source and amount of the financial resources available
to fund the operating start-up costs {including any initial operating deficit) and reference
the documentation that verifies sufficient resources are available.

i 7 s‘l i '-,:‘;: '; Fis ;
'APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS’
'APPLICATION FORM.

Start up cc;st.é.fur.laéa-iiy cash $696,677Tl for seven months of op ating deficit.

A%
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Roseland Hospital

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE
A B C D E F G H Total
are Foot Gross Sq, Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. $ Mod. $ Cost
Department/Area New Mod. New Circ." Mod. Circ.* (AxC) {B x E) {G + H)
AMI 264.29 10,973 $2.900,000 $2,900,000
Contingency 16.40 10,973 $180,000 $180,000
TOTAL 2B0.69 10,973 $3,080,000 $3,080,000

<O



REVIEW CRITERIA RELATING TO ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY (ECON)
{continued)

a. that the lowest net cost available has been selected; or

b. that the choice of higher cost equipment is justified due to such factors
as, but not limited to, maintenance agreements, options to purchase, or
greater diagnostic or therapeutic capabilities.

3 List the items and costs included in preplanning, site survey, site preparation,
off-site work, consulting, and other costs to be capitalized. If any project line
item component includes costs attributable to extraordinary or unusual
circumstances, explain the circumstances and provide the associated dollar
amount. When fair market value has been provided for any component of
project costs, submit documentation of the value in accordance with the
requirements of Part 1190.40.

D. Criterion 1120.310(d), Projected Operating Costs

Read the criterion and provide in the space below the facility's projected direct annual
operating costs (in current dollars per equivalent patient day or unit of service, as
applicable) for the first full fiscal year of operation after project completion or for the first
full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds target utilization pursuant to 77 IIL.
Adm. Code 1100, whichever is later. If the project involves a new category of service,
also provide the annual operating costs for the service. Direct costs are the fully
allocated costs of salaries, benefits, and supplies. Indicate the year for which the
projected operating costs are provided.

E. Criterion 1120.310(e), Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

s the project classified as a category B project? Yes @ No [. If no is indicated, go
to item F. If yes is indicated, provide in the space below the facility's total projected
annual capital costs as defined in Part 1120.130(f} (in current dollars per equivalent
patient day) for the first full fiscal year of operation after project completion or for the
first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds target utilization pursuant to
77 . Adm. Code 1100, whichever s later. Indicate the year for which the projected
capital costs are provided.

F. Criterion 1120.310(f), Non-patient Related Services

Is the project classified as a category B project and involve non-patient related
services? Yes 0 No E. If no is indicated, this criterion is not applicable. If yes is
indicated, read the criterion and document that the project will be self-supporting and
not result in increased charges to patients/residents or that increased charges are
justified based upon such factors as, but not limited to, a cost benefit or other analysis
that demonstrates the project will improve the applicant's financial viability.




ORGANIZATIONAL RELATIONSHIPS

Roseland Community Hospital is a general acute care hospital solely held by Roseland

Community Hospital Association.
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May-29-2088 11:234 FROM:QILLINAME LAW FIRM 314156917172 TN 17739959538 P23

¥ lllinois Department of
Natural esources Rod A. Blagojevich, Govemor

T el L ke i

One Nstural Resourcas Way * Springfiald, 1iinols 627024271 ) Sam Flood, Acting Oirector
hitp:#anr.state. l.us . '

Tuly 25, 2007

Mr. John S. Cullinane

The Cullinane Law Firm
10411 Clayton Road, Suite AS
§t. Louis, MO 63131

RE: Acule Mental Health Unit, Roseland Hospital, 45 W. 111" Street, Chicago, L

Deer Mr. Cullinane:

Thank you for submiiting site plans and requesting a fleodplain determination for the pmposeFi
Mental Health Unit 2t Roseland Hospital in Chicago, Dlinojs i order to ensure compliance with
IHinois Bxecutive Onder #V (E.Q. V).

In brief, E.O. V requires that state agencies which plen, promots, regulate, or permit pelivities, &3
well as those. which administer geants or loans in the State’s floodplain aveas, must ensure that all

. projects mect the standards of the state floodplain regulations or the National Flood Insurance

Program (NFIP) whichever is more stringent. These standards require that new or substantially
unproved buildings as well as other development activilies be prolected from damage by the
100-year flood. In addition, no construction aclivilies in the foodplain may cause increases in
flood heights or damages 1o other propertics. '

Based on the site location yow have provided, we have determined that, this parce! is mot _lncntod
within n designated 100-yenr floodplain and therefore would not fall under the Roodplain
development requirements of EQ, V.

Should you have any questions or comments regarding this flood hazard determination, feel free 1o
contact me at (217) 782-4428.

" Sincerely,

M, e

Pail A. Osnan, Manager
Floodplain Management Programs

1 ]
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P.373

mv-eg—éaaa 11:22Q FROM:CULLINANE LAW FIRM 314156917172 TO: 3177399553538

Itlinois Historic
re—sss Pregervation Agency
Yolca (217} 782-4838

|' 1 Old State Capitol Flaza < Springfisld, Itincis 62701-1612 ¢ Telatypowriter Only (217) 524-7128
ceok Courty PLEASE REPER TO: IHEA LOO #004071387 www. [llinols-history.gov

Chicagqe

45 Wege 11lth Street
Eotabliohkment of a MNew Acute Mental Heslth Unit, Rogeland Cewmunity Hogpital

July 17, 2007

John 8. Cullinane

The Cullinane lLaw Firm

10631 Clayton Rpad, Suite AP
galnt Louie, MO 63111

Dear Mr. Cullinane:

The Illinclo Historic Preservation Ageney is required by the Illinoie State hgency #iateric Resources
prasepvation Act {20 ILCS 3420, aa amended, 17 IAC 4160) to veview all ptate funded, permitted or
licensed undertakings for their sffect on cultural resourced. Pugsuant to this, we have received
{nformat ion regarding the raeferenced projeot for our comment.

Our staff has revieved cthe gpscifications under the ptate law and agssssed the impact of the projsct aa
pubmitted by your office. He have Actprmined, based on the availesble {nfsrmation, that no significant
Riprorie, architaccurnl or archeacological reecurces are yocated within the propoeed project area.

According to the information you have provided conceyning youx proposed project, apparently there is no

#pdaral involvement in your project. However, plesas nate that the meats law Lla lesa restrictive then
the federal cultural redource lawa concerning archseolegy. 1f your project will use federal loama orf
yanto, nsed faderal agency permits, use fadarsl preperty, or involve aselstance from a faderal agency,
hen your project must be revigwed under the Mations) Kistorlc Preservation Act of 1966, as amended.

Plaane netify us immedistely if suth le the caee,

om date of issuence. IF doos not pertain to any

Thin clearance remains in etfeck for two {2) yeare It
f the YL Human pkeletal Ramains

digeovery during conatruction, ner ig it B clearance for purpeseo ©
Protectlon Act (20 ILCE J440).

Pleass retain chig 1lsecer in your tilese as avidence of compliance with the Illinole State hgency

Higtorle Rapourcsd Prapervation Act .

¢ "Hanksr

Anne B. Raaker
Deputy Btate Historlc
preservation Officer

Blncexely,

AEH

. . Printad vn Fecyeled Pipst
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oseland

Community Hospital

80 years of senuice and own commitment conlinues. ..

October 23, 2009

Mr. Michael Constantino

Mllinois Health Facilities Planning Board
525 W, Jefferson Street

Springfield, IL 62761

Dr. Mr. Constantino,

This is to verify that no adverse action has been taken with respect to Roseland Hospital
in the last three years. In addition, this letter authorizes the Illinois Health Facilities
Planning Board and its employees to access information in order to verify any
documentation or information submitted in response to our application. Additional
access is allowed to obtain any documentation or information that the Planning Board or
its employees find pertinent for the purposes of reviewing the background of the
applicant.

Sincerely,

”n%g,?/-gw-’

Anthony {/ Puorro, FACHE, FHFMA
President and Chief Executive Officer

ATTACHMENT 10
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File Number 2655-882-4

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON MARCH 29, 1940, APPEARS TO
HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT

CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 29TH

dayof ~ SEPTEMBER  AD. 2009

b, n"-.. L .—":
Authentication #: 0927201874 M

Authenticate at: hitp://ww.cyberdriveillincis.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

=7
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" BUREAU OF HEALTHCARE FACILITIES ACCREDITATION

o [ i wEm  rrmem,. e rr—  tmitn any . _ze.ss
i

142 E. Ontario Streel, Chicago, IL 60611-2864 ph 312 202 8258 | 800- 621 -1773 X 8258

September 18, 2009

Aanthony Puotto

Chief Executive Officer
Roseland Community Hospital
45 West 111 Streer

Chicago, IL 60628

Dear Mr Puorro :
The American Osteopathic Association’s Burean of Healtheare Facilities Accreditation Executive Comumittee, at its meeting

on August 26, 2009 , reviewed the recertification survey report and granted Full Accreditation with Interim Report, with
resurvey within 3 years and recommends that the CMS RO approve deemed status for:

Roscland Community Hospital Program: Acute Care Hospital
45 West 111t Street CCN # 140068
Chicago, IL 60628 HFAP ID: 164144

Survey Drates: 09/29/08 — 10/01/08
Effective Date of Accreditadon: 10/01/08 - 10/01/2011

For Intetim Accreditation Actions Only:

Condition Level Deficicncies: | | None Timeframe for response to deficiencies: g
{Use crosswalk and CFR citiations, if applicable): -
482.51

30.00.00 Surgical Services

In reviewing your report, the Executive Committee made the observations that are contained on the enclosed sheets and
requires that in Interim Report by your facility, indicating continued progress made toward correction of cited deficiencies, be
received 1n the AOA Division of Healthcare Facilities Accreditation prior to October 15, 2009,

Sincerely,

4»%”4-’2“%».

George A, Reuther

Secretary
GAR/pmh
Enclosure
ce:  Prestdent, Governing Body
Chief of Staff
Laura Weber, Health Insurance Specialist, CMS
Region V, CMS =8 ATTACHMENT 10

TREATING OUR FAMILY AND YOURS www.0steopathic.arg | do-online.org
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; ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
43 WEST 111TH STREET

: CHICAGO IL 60628

FEE RECEIPT NO. ! -
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
45 W. 111™ STREET, CHICAGO, IL

TRAVEL TiMES & DISTANCE

Jackson Park Hospital Foundation

7531 S. Stony Island
Chicago, IL 60649

Mercy Hospital & Medical Center

2525 S. Michigan Ave.
Chicago, IL 60616

St. Bernard Hospital
326 W. 641 Street
Chicago, IL 60621

Rush University Medical Center
1653 W. Congress Parkway
Chicago, IL 60612

Advocate Christ Medical Center
4440 W. 950 Street
Qak Lawn, IL 60453

Ingalls Memorial Hospital
1 Ingalls Drive
Harvey, IL 60426

Littte Company of Mary Hospital
2800 W. 95t Street
Evergreen Park, IL 60805

PLANNING AREA A-03

TRAVEL TIME
(in minutes})

15

23.75

17.50

28.75

22

18

16

=)

DISTANCE
(in miles)

6.18

11.20

6.41

14.75

7.67

929

547

X
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COST BENEFIT ANALYSIS

If Roseland Community Hospital does nothing, the cost to the community will be

of significant, if not quantifiable magnitude. The large number of patients who need
this service will remain untreated in the inpatient setting which physicians and comm.-
munity providers state they need and they will remain a burden on their families and
to themselves.

Revenues from installing this service at the hospital will cover its costs and provide
a profit to the applicant allowing the hospital to continue to enhance and upgrade its
service to the community.

As you will see from the financial spreadsheet which we have included in this ap-
plication, this new service will provide the additional wherewithal to continue to
move Roseland from an endangered hospital in a community desperately needing
service to become, once again, the community hospital its history demonstrates.

ATTACHMENT 12




SIZE OF PROJECT

The project consists of 30 beds in 10,973 GSF, or 365.77 GSF per bed. The State
standard is 588 GSF per acute mental illness bed. Therefore, the project is 222.23 GSF

smaller than the State standard.

While the space is for child and adolescents who need in-patient behavioral treatment,
Roseland is a General Acute care Hospital which already has private treatment space
available in proximity to the unit, so additional space within the service will note be

necessary.

ATTACHMENT 13
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH UNIT - ADOLESCENTS

FINANCIAL MODEL

Volume;

Admissions

Length of Stay

Total Patient Days
Medical Assistance Days
Cther Patient Days

ADC

Reimbursement rates:
Medical Assistance
Other

Revenue:

Medical Assistance
Other

Tolal Projected Revenue

Staffing {FYE's):
Medical Director
Psychiatrist

Program Director

Nurse Manages

Unit Clerk

Registered Nurse
Licensed Practical Nurse
Social Worker

Total Staffing

Hourly Wage:

Medical Diraclor
Psychiatrist

Program Director

Nurse Manager

Unit Clerk

Registerad Murse
Licensed Practical Nurse
Social Worker

Total Staffing

Labor Expenses:
Medizal Director
Psychiatrist

Program Divector

Nurse Manager

Unit Clers,

Registerad Nurse
Licensed Practical Nurse
Social Worker

Total Slaffing

Fringe Bensfits

Purchased Service - Mgl. Fes
Food

Pharmaceulicals

Ulilities

Office Supplies

Medical Supplies

Linen

Depreciation

Interost Expense

Total Operating Expenses

Net Operating Margin

Month Month Month Month Maonth Month Month Month Month Month Month Month
1 2 3 4 5 6 T 8 ] 10 1" 12 Year 1 ¥Year 2 Year 3
15 30 45 42 50 49 a9 49 58 60 60 54 561 720 744
13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 130 13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0
195 390 585 548 650 637 637 637 754 780 780 702 7,293 9,360 9,672
185 an 536 519 618 605 605 605 716 741 741 667 6,928 8,892 9,188
10 20 29 27 33 32 32 a2z 38 39 39 35 365 468 484
7 13 20 18 22 21 21 21 25 26 26 23 20 26 26
$550 $550 $550 $550 $550 $550 3550 £550 5550 $550 $550 $550 $550 $550 $550
$575 $575 8575 $575 8575 $575 3575 $575 5675 85575 $575 8575 $575 $575 $575
§101,BBB §203,775 $305683 $285285 $339,625 $332,833 $332833 $332,833 $393,965 3407550 $407.550 $366,795 $3,B10,563 54890600 55,053,620
$5606 $11,213 §16819 §156908 §18688 §$18314 $18314 §1B314 §$21678 $22425 §$22425 $20183 §203674 $269.100 $278,070
$107.4594 $214 088 $322.481 $300,683 51583 $351,146 S5351,146 $351,1456 54155843 $420,975 $429.975 $388,978 $4,020,266 $5,159,700 55,331,690
1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 10 t.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 10 1.0
1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 10
1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 3.0 3.0
49 9.8 14.6 137 16.3 15.9 15.9 150 18.9 105 19.5 176 19.2 10.9
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 20 20
10 1.0 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1.0 10 1.0 3.0 30
10.9 158 20.6 19,7 223 219 219 219 249 25.5 25.5 236 31.2 31,9
$56.15 $96.15 $96.15 $96.15 398,15 $96.15 $96.15 506.15 $96.15 $96.15 $96.15 $86.15 $96.15 $96.15
£84.13 584.13 $84.12 $84.13 £84.13 $84.13 $84,13 $84.13 $84.13 $84.13 58413 58413 $84.13 $84.13
$36.06 $36.06 $36.06 $36.06 $36.06 $36.08 $36.06 $36.06 $36.06 $36.06 $36.06 $36.06 $36.06 $36.06
$31.65 $33.65 $33.65 $33.85 $33.65 $33.65 $33.65 $33.65 333.65 $33.65 $33.65 $33.65 $33.65 332,65
$12.02 $12.02 $12.02 $12.02 $12.02 $12.02 $12.02 $12.02 §$12.02 $12.02 $12.02 $12.02 $12.02 $12.02
$24.04 $24.04 $24.04 $24.04 $24.04 $24.04 $24.04 $24.04 $24.04 $24.04 $24.04 $24.04 524.04 $24.04
$14.42 $14.42 514,42 $14.42 $14.42 $14.42 $14.42 $14.42 $14.42 $14.42 $14.42 $14.42 $14.42 $14.42
$24.04 524.04 $24.04 $24.04 $24.04 524.04 $24.04 $24.04 $24.04 $24.04 $24.04 $24.04 $24.04 $24.04
$16,887 $16,667 $16667 S16,667 $16667 516667 $16667 $16,667 $16,667 $16,667 318667 $16,667 $200,000 5200000 $200,000
§14,583 $14,583 $14,583 514,583 $14,583 §14,582 514,583 $i4.583 $14583 $14583 $14,583 $14,583  $175000 $175,000 $175.000
$6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 26,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6.250 £8,250 $75,000 $75,000 $75,000
$5,833 $5,833 $5833  £5822 $5,833 $5,833 55,833 $5,833 55,833 $5,833 $5.833 $5.833 £70,000 570,000 $70,000
$2,083 $2,083 $2,083 $2.083 52,083 $2,083 $2,083 $2,083 $2,083 §2,083 $2,083 $2,083 $25,000 $75,000 $75,000
$20.013 340,625 $6093B ¥56,875 $G7,70B $66,354 $66,354 $66,354 $78,542 $91,250 $81.250 $73.125 $750,688 $961,644 $903,600
30 0 30 $0 50 50 80 30 $0 50 $0 30 30 $60,000 $60,000
$4.167 $4.167 $4.167 $4.167 $4,167 $4.167 $4 167 $4,187 $4,167 $4.167  $4.167 $4,187 $50,000 $150,000  $150,000
$69,896 $90,208 $110,521 $106,458 $117.282 $115938 $1159308 5115938 $128,125 $130,833 $130,833 $122,708 $1.354,688 $1,766,644 $1,798,600
$13.879 $18,042 522,104 521,202 $23,458 $23,188 $23,1BB $23,1BB $25,625 526,167 $26.167 $24542 5270038 $353,329 $350,740
$25000 $25000 $25000 525000 325000 %25000 $25000 §25000 %25000 $25000 S$25.000 %25.000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000
$975 $1,950 §2,925 $2,730 $3.250 53,185 $3,185 %3,185 53,770 $3,900 53,900 $3.510 $36.465 $46,800 $48,380
$5,850 $8,700 §17,650 516,380 $18,500 19,110 B15,110 $19,110 $22,620 $23,400 $23,400 521,060  $215790 $280.800 $290,160
$2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 52,500 $2,500 52,500 $2,500 £30,000 $30,000 $30,000
5390 5780 $1.170 $1.082 $1,300 §1,274 $1,274 $1,274 51,508 $1,560 $1,560 51,404 $14 586 $18,720 $19,344
$1.950 $3,900 $5,850 35,480 $6,500 $6,370 $6.370 $6,370 §7,540 $7,800 $7,800 $7,020 $72,630 $83,600 $968,720
$975 $1,950 $2,925 §2,730 $3,250 $3.185 $3,185 £3,185 £3,770 53,900 $3,900 $3.510 $36,455 546,800 548,360
§11,333  $11,333 511,333 511,333 $11,333  $11.333  $11.333 $11,333  $11,333 $11,333  $11,333  %$11,333 $135996 §$135,996 $135,906
515583 515357 §15120 $14.901 514,672 $14.442 $14,210 513977 $13,744 $13,509 $13,273  $13,037 5171834 $137.,571 $101,371
$148,431 $179,720 5217,007 $209.876 3$22B,065 $225524 $2257292 $225059 $245535 $249,902 $249,666 $235824 52,639,891 $3,210,260 53,228,740
-$40.937 $35268 $105.474 $91.107 $130.258 $125,622 5125854 $126,087 $170.108 $180,073 $180,309 $151,354 51,380,575 $1,949.440 §2,102,941
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s

PROJECTED PATIENT DAYS

Projected patient days for the first two years after the additional beds open are:

Year 1. 7,293 ¢
Year 2: 9,360 *

The projections for the first year are based on the referral volume contained both in the
referral letters and the service agreements.

. See: Roseland Community Hospital Financial Model
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EMERGENCY ROOMBY ZIP CODE
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EMERGENCY ROOM 8Y ZIP CODE

08 10:3 2:48 (ZIPCODERPT) PAGE 1
PATIENT PATIENT
NUMBER ZIP CODE

60628 1 B
60619 1
60628 1
60827 2
G827 1
0 1
2806 1
6031978 1
6478 1
15205 1
19144 1
20469 1
21133 1
22026 1
23608 1
27909 1
30060-168 1

30274

30311

32507

33127

33612

353713

35802




37217

38128

38463

38663

38748

39069

39209

39648

43232

43620

44306

45840

46226

46234

46236

46304

46307

46311

46312

46319

46320

46321

463213

46323

46324

46325

zY




46327

46341

46360

46368

46375

46383

46394

46402

46403

46404

46406

46407

46408

46409

46410

46421

465186

46544

46601

46628

47274

47904

47905

47909

47948

48075

&/



48146

48228

48238

48607

48911

48912

48933

49043

49424

49501

49507

50010

50314

50316

50317

52001

52240

52248

52601

53081

53105

53140

53206

53208

53210

53212






55425

55428

55429

55430

55434

56746

55811

55947

56303

59847

60

60000

60004

60015

60056

60064

60067

60074

60085

60087

6008

60090

60099

80101

60102

60104

&3



60107
60108
60110
60120
60123
| 60131
60133
60139
60148
60152
60153
60162
60163
601832
60193
60194
60201
60203
60280
60302
60304
60317
60333
60402
60405

60406

y<f



60407

60409

60410

60411

60412

60413

60415

60417

60418

60419

60421

60422

60423

60425

60426

60427

60428

60429

60430

60432

60434

60435

60436

60438

60440

60441

42

167

61

10

164

28

27

33




60442

60443

60445

6.04E+08

60446

60449

60450

60451

60452

60453

60454

60455

60456

60457

60458

60459

60461

60462

60465

60466

60467

604689

60470

60471

60472

60473




60475

60477

60478

60481

60501

60502

80505

80506

60508

60516

60517

60527

60528

605433

60551

60559

60585

608

60601

60602

60603

60604

60605

60607

60608

60609




60610

60612

60613

60614

606147

60615

60616

60617

60618

60619

6062

60620

60621

60622

60623

606237

60624

60625

606258

60626

60627

60628

60628-401.

60628423

60628-622

60628CJ

73

10

38

59
34
336
11

486

696
228
17

42

50

11

101

14,671

774



6.06E+09

60629

6063

60630

60632

60633

60634

60636

60637

60638

60639

60640

60641

60642

60643

60643-501

60644

60645

60647

60648

60649

60651

60652

60653

60654

60655

11

35

207
194
18
10

26

1,713

47

14

201

26

50

83




60657

60658

60659

60660

60660615

60661

606628

60673

606827

60692

60699

60727

60728

60801

60803

60804

60805

6082

60824

60826

60827

60828

60843

608827

60901

60914

10

11

12




60915

60964

61032

51100

61102

61104

61108

61110

61201

61354

61701

61761

81777

61802

61821

61832

61866

61898

62025

62201

62522

62526

62702

62703

62828

626864

57



62901 1
62948 3
66283 1
68107 1
68278 2
85023 1
85051 1
85208 1
89032 1
89119 1
90037 2
90805 1
94619 1
94801 1
99336 1
1

FINAL 22,361

END OF REPORT "**




INPATIENT BY ZIP CODE




INPATIENT BY ZIP CODE

7:16 (ZIPCODERPT) PAGE 1
PATIENT

ZIP CODE
60426 1
60628 1
3291929 1
18360 1
30135 1
30804 1
33612 1
37900 1
39661 1
46312 3
46320 5
46350 1
46360 1
46394 1
46402 3
46403 2
46404 4
46407 2
46615 1
48601 1
49014 1
52057 1
52405 1
52655 1

52806 1




55107

55411

60064

60085

60087

60104

60120

60130

60133

60148

60153

60201

60287

60406

60409

60411

60417

60419

60425

60426

60428

60429

60430

16

58

12

42

47

14

X9




60438

60439

60440

60443

60457

60458

60458

60461

60466

60471

60472

60473

60475

60478

60504

60505

60506

60601

60603

60605

60607

60608

60609

60610

60612

60613

10

32

20

SéE




60614

60615

60616

60617

60619

60620

60621

60622

60623

60624

606258

60626

60627

60628

60628423

60620

60630

60632

60633

60634

60636

60637

60638

60639

60640

60641

11
34
52
112
201
209

93

29

29

27
10

3,008

30

24

17

82
140
11
17
32

11

S 7



60643

60644

60645

60646

60647

60648

60649

60651

60652

60653

6065328

60655

60657

60658

60660

606827

60692

60803

60804

60805

60827

60828

60901

60915

60953

61081

393

70

100

85

18

110

S
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46516

60016

60026

60068

60077

60085

60107

60108 .

60110
60115
60123
60133
60153
60154
60172
" 60193
60208
60301
60302
60304

60308

L2










60477

60478

60480

60482

60487

60430

50491

60493

60504

60505

60513

60517

60525

60527

60543

60546

60559

605886

606

60601

606028

60604

60605

60607

60608

60609




60611

60612 5

60613 3

60615 30

60616 26

60617 258

60618 1

60619 298

6061928 1

60620 459

6.06E+08 1

60621 122

60622 2
606228 2
60623 8
60624 8
606258 2
60626 3
60627 33

60628 5,284

60628423 1

| 60629 134
60630 3

60632 43

60633 64

60635 1



o

60636 142
60637 101
60638 42
60639 3
60640 3
60641 2
606411 1
60642 1

60643 1,020

6.06E+08 1
606436 1
60644 12
60645 3
60646 2
60647 5
60648 1
60649 139
6.06E+08 1
60651 13
60652 120
60633 54
60655 192
60656 1
60657 1
60658 8

60660 3




60630 1

60692 5

60728 1

60802 10

60803 210

60804 3

60805 103

60825 1

60827 870

60828 1

608287 1

60901 1

60909 1

60940 2

61008 1
61102 2

6126 1
81777 1
61832 2
62864 1
72301 1

| 90827 1
11,929
|




ACUTE MENTAL ILLNESS- REFERRAL VOLUME

As you will notice from the support letters, referral letters, and service agreements, there
is universal sentiment that an acute mental illness unit at Roseland Hospital serving
children and adolescents is sorely needed on the South Side of Chicago. The potential
volumes because of that need are staggering! The following will detail the referrals that
Roseland can expect from hospitals, physicians, service agencies and the Department of
Children and Family Services. (Also it should be noted, where gross numbers were noted
for referrals, we have taken no more than half the total number who are designated to be
south side referrals.) There are three large community agencies who have sent in signed
agreements for coordinated care for AMI child and adolescent patients, of which Ada S.
McKinley Community Services is the largest. Again, we have attempted to be conser-
vative in our interpretation of these numbers. They are listed below.

Projected Annual Referrals Roseland Community Hospital

Ada S. McKinley Community Services — 956

St. Anthony Hospital - 3

The Alliance on Mental Illness of Greater Chicago — 13

Community Menta! Health Council - 240

Illinois Department of Children and Family Services — 40

EmCare — 30

Mercy Hospital — 36

Metropolitan Family Services — 240

Mount Sinai Hospital — 24

Provident Hospital — 36

Dr. Sanette C. Varnodomus 10

University of Illinois Hospttal at Chicago — 10

Total Referrals - 1940

4T o ————
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ACUTE MENTAL ILLNESS- REEERRAL VOLUME

As you will notice from the support letters, referral letters, and service agreements, there
is universal sentiment that an acute mental illness unit at Roseland Hospital serving
children and adolescents is sorely needed on the South Side of Chicago. The potential
volumes because of that need are staggering! The following will detail the referrals that
Roseland can expect from hospitals, physicians, service agencies and the Department of
Children and Family Services. (Also it should be noted, where gross numbers were noted
for referrals, we have taken no more than half the total number who are designated to be
south side referrals.) There are three large community agencies who have sent in signed
agreements for coordinated care for AMI child and adolescent patients, of which Ada S.
McKinley Community Services is the largest. Again, we have attempted to be conser-
vative in our interpretation of these numbers. They are listed below.

Projected Annual Referrals Roseland Community Hospital

Ada S. McKinley Community Services — 956

St. Anthony Hospital — 5

The Alliance on Mental Illness of Greater Chicago — 13

Community Mental Health Council — 240

Illinois Department of Children and Family Services — 40

EmCare - 30

Mercy Hospital - 36

Metropolitan Family Services — 240

Mount Sinai Hospital — 24

Provident Hospital — 36

Dr. Sanette C. Varnodomus 10

University of Illinois Hospital at Chicago — 10

Total Referrals - 1940

70 e W
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Provident Hbspital of Cook County

S00 East 51* Sireel, Chicago, lilinois 60815
312.572.2000 * TOD 31 2.572.1726

Todd H. Strogor
Prasident
Board of Gook County Commisslonars

Wnﬂy A. Thomas
Chisi Operafing Officer

April 22, 2008

Mr. lan McFadden
President/CEQ

Roseland Community Hospital
45 West 111" Stroet

Chicago, IL 60628

Dear Mr. McFadden:

| have personal knowledge of the shortage of pediatric psychiatric beds on the Far South Side.
This is a densely populated area and has one. of the highest incidences for psychiatric
emergencies for youth in the State of lllinois. DCFS data suggests that many of these patients
are referred to hospital programs in other services areas at some distance away as a rasult of
this shortage. This posas great challenges to these vulngrable youth to obtain and o complete
treatment and, of course, to their families.

Last year, our agency referred many pediatric patients to inpatient psychiatric units in Chicago
area hospitals. If Roseland Community Hospitai had operated a unit to the kind it is proposing
to develop during this past year, our agency likely would have possibly referred pednatnc
psychiatric patients.

Our agency is grateful to Roseland Community Hospital for recognizing and stepping forwarg 1o
meet the obvious need for this new inpatient pediatric psychiatric unit. Please let me know if we
can provide any other assstance in this process. '

Sincerely,

Dons & W, Ds®

Plerre E. Wakim, DO
Chairman
Department of Emergency Medicine

= ATTACHMENT 20

We Bring Health CARE o Your Community
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UNIVERSITY OF JLLINO1S
AT CHICACGO

* Department of Fsychiatry (MC 747) . -
1747 West Ruosevelt Road o Augus‘t 30, 2007

Chicago, Iinois 60608

ian McFadden

President and CEQ

Rosetand Community Hospital
45W. 111th Street

Chicago, IL60B28

Dear Mr. McFadden,

i am a chitd psychiatrist and | have worked with youth with mental health needs wilhin
Chicago’s metrcpolilan area fur, rnany years. | am writing lo ofer iy suppon far your plai 1o Open
child and adolescent program at Roseland Community Hospital. There Is tack of quahty mental henlth
services for youth and their famites in the Roseland community. A large gap in sarvices m this

- community is the absenca of an inpatient psychsatric program for children and adolescerts. Cumentty,
the families must travel far outside their communities to find services. This has crealed a barfer for the
youth and famifies that | ieat.

Thera is a greal need for an inpatient chilt and adolescent psychiatric program on Chicago's far south
. side. Many inpatient psychiatric programs have closed or downsized in the recent past. The need for
community based programs for patiants of olor is critical, if the dispaiily of senvices along racial fines is
- to be addmssed. This commundy is in dire need of more lnpauent psychiatric beds and. speciaized
services for youth, | would be very happy to refer my patients in need of acute cane to your new

program.

PO,

Karan Taylor-Crawlond, MD, CABPN
Director of Disruptive Behaviors Clinic (DBC) Schonl-Age
Program, Board Certified Child Psychiatrist

Assistant Professor of Clinical Psychiatry
University of Illinois at Chicago
Institute for Juvenile Rescarch (MC 747)
Department of Paychiatiy

Colbeth Child Psychiatry Clinic

1747 West Reoscvelt Road, Room 1355

Chicago, IL 60608-1264

I PN

Phone (312) 996-7723 » Fax (312} 413-7757

22
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I TAL CHICAGO HEIGHTS
and Healch Centers 1423 Chicago Road, Chicago Heights, [linois 60411-3483
708/756-1000
OLYMPIA FIELDS
20201 8. Crawford Avenue, Olympie Fields, Nllinois 60461-1010
708/747-4000
May 2, 2008

Mr. lan McFadden

President and Chief Executive Officer
Roseland Comununity Hospital

45 West 111" Street

Chicago, llinois 60628

Dear Mr. McFadden:

- It is my understapding that Reseland Community Hosphal is planoing o develop an inpatient
pediatric/adolescent psychiatric unit at its facility on Chicago’s far south side. This is a much secdcd
project that has the enthusiastic support of St. James Hospital and Health Centers in Chicago Heights
and Olympia Fields. Child and adolescent psych is an underserved service and Roseland Community
Hospitsl's initiative in addressing the need is commendable,

As President of St. James, I can attest to the shortage of pediatric/adolescent psychiatric beds on the
south side. There is a large population of these patients in our areas that present in hospital
emergency departments. Many of these hospitals, such as St. James, are nol properly equipped to
‘provide the level of specialized scrvice necessary to assist them. It is my hope that Roseland
Community’s proposed inpatient pediatric psychiatric unit can fill this significant void.

St. James 1s grateful to Roseland Community Hospital for being proactive in addressing this obvious
‘veed and wholchcartedly supports your application for & Certificate of Need. Please do pot hesitatc
to contact us if we can provide any other assistance with this process,

Sincercly,
Scth C. 'R_ éa}m-) __
- President
_ et-
n thiset day.of ¢ . 2008, before me personally appeared .fem wﬂMﬂ/ and

signed the foregoing instrument in the above stated capacity as his/her free act and deed.

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATF OF ILEINDIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 12/16/2010

Rithmarie Leonard, No

ol A B

-y ‘ t

My Commission Expires: gl = /& - RO/ O
' ’ A division of the Sisters of §1. Francis Health Services, Inc.
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L@\ Saint
7o 4 Anthony

A I 2875 West 19th Street | 779.484.1000
HOS PIT Chicago, Liinois 60628 | www.salutenthanghospltal org

Dedicasion, nuweuyo compromise

May 1, 2008

Tan McFadden

President/Chief Executive Officer
Roseland Community Hospital
45 West 111" Street

Chicago, lllinois 60628

Dear M: McFadden:

Thank you for sharing Roseland Community Hospital's plan to develop an inpatient pediatric psychiatric it at
its fucilities on Chicago’s far south side. This project has the enthusiastic support of Saint Anthony Hospital end
will help fill a long-standing gap in these kinds of serviecs.

As Chief Operating Officer of Saint Anthony Hospital, | have persoual knowledge of the shortage of pediatric
psychiatric bads. This is a densely populated area and has onc of the highest incidences for psychiatric
emergencics for youth in the State of [llinois. Saint Anthony Hospital's data suggests that many of these
patients are referred to hospital programs in other service areas at some distance sway as a result of this
shortage. This poses great challenges 1o these vulnezable youth to obtain and to complete treatraent and, of
course, to their familics.

Last year, our hospits] referred approximately five pediatric patients to inpatient psychiatric units in Chicago
area hospitals.  In addition, we think it is very likely that arca Screcning, Asscssment and Support Services
(SASS) agencies would refer 1o this new unit and welcome this additional resource because it is difficult to find
resources on the city’s far south side

Our hospita) is grateful to Roseland Community Hospital for recognizing and stepping forward to meet the
obvious need for this ncw inpatient pediatric psychiatric unit. Saint Anthony Hospital fully supports the
Hospital's application for a Certificate of Need. Please let us know if we can provide any other assistance in
this process.

Sincerely,

Ra.wop[\,
Gwenn Rausch

Chiefl Operating Officer

On thisgrgd day of Lf[lu: , 2008 before me personally appeared _éa@a_?dMA

and signed the foregoing instrdment in the above stateg, capacity as bisther free g5t and deed.

RICIAL SEAL”

Jewerystine Sampson

Notary Public, Stato of Hlinofs
me QSN0

My Commission Expires: § /}7 /LOIO

Sponsored by Arconision Heaith and the Mésnonary Sisiers of the Sucrod Heart of Sesus-Stalta Moris Proviace

>/
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Promoting
healthy
families.
Building
stronger ©
communities,

ESMmWHmW

Chicago
Family
HealthCenter

HP LASERJET FAX

May 1, 2008

Mr. Jan McFadden
President/CEO

Roseland Community Hospital
45 West 1117 Street

Chicago, IL 60628

Dear Mr. McFadden:

Chicago Family Health Center is pleased to support Roseland Community
Hospital’s plan to develop an inpatient pediatric psychiatric unit at its
facilities on Chicago’s Far South Side. This project will help fill a long-
standing gap in these kinds of services.

At Chicapgo Family Health Center, we are aware of the shortage of pediatric
psychiatric beds on the Far South Side. This is a densely populated area and
has onc of the highest incidences for psychiatric emergencies for youth in
the State of 1llinois. Data suggests that many of these patients are referred
to hospital programs in other service areas at some distance away as a result
of this shortage. This poses great challenges to these vulnerable youth to
obtain and to complete treatment and, of course, to their families.

Last year, our organization referred our pediatric patients to inpatient
psychiatric units in Chicago area hospitals. OQur referrals reside on the
City’s Far South Side, and are referred to Michael Recsc Hospital for
treatment, [f Roseland Community Hospital had operated a unit to the kind
it is proposing 1o devclop during this past year, our orgenization likely
would have referred this pediatric patient to your hospital. In addition, we
think it is very likely that other area Screening, Assessment and Suppon
Services (SASS) agencies would refer to this ncw unit and welcome this
additional resource.

Qur organization is grateful to Roseland Community Hospital for
recognizing and stepping forward to meet the obvious need for this new
inpaticnt pediatric psychiatric unit. Chicago Family fully supports the
Hospital’s application for a Certificate of Need. Please let us know if we
can provide any other assistance in this process.

Sincerely,

\“;::}LS;;2¥QS;m_JCcuu?»—t%”

Wendy Cox-Largent
Chief Exceutive Officer

ikt
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Provident Hospital of Cook County
. 500 East 51t Street :

April 23, 2008

¥r. Ian McFadden
President/CEQ0 -

Roseland Community Hospital
45 wWast 111%™ Street
Chicago, Il 60628

Dear Mr. McFradden:

Thank you for gharing Roseland Commanity Hospitrl’s plan to
develop an ippatient pediatric psychiatric unit at its facilities
on Chicago’z South Side. This profject has the enthumiastic
support of thée Department of Padistrics at Provident Hospital of
Cook County. .

_ The Department of Pediatrics hap personal knowledge of the
shortage of pediatric pgychiatric beds en the Bouth Side. This ig
a denssly populated area and has one of the highest incildencaes fcor
psychiatric emmrgencies for youth in the Stats of Yllinoig. Data

suggests that ‘many of thase patients are refoerred to hospital
programg in other service areas at some diatance ‘away, ag a result
of this shortage. This poses gieat challenges to thasea vuloerable
youth and their families, and bhinders completion of treatment.

" lLast year, our -institution referred pediatric patients to
inpatient psychiatric units in Chicago area hospitals. Of thase
rediatric patients residing on the City’n South Side, the bulk of
these patients were referred te Michael Reege, University of
Illinois, and Little Company of Mary Hozpital. If Rozeland were to.
operate &n impatient pediatric psychiatric unit, wa will refer
patients as appropriate, Tn addition, we think it i{s very likely -
that area foreening, Assessment and Support . Bervices (8ASS) -
agencies would rafér to thie naw unit and welcome ‘this additional -
rasource.

Our department is grateful to Roseland Comminity Hospital for

Tecognizing and stepping forward to meet for thig need for an

. inpatient pediatric psychiatric unit. I fully gupport tha
Hoapital’s application for a Certificate of Nead. | :

Sincerely,

Gayle Kates, MD, Chairparscn -
Department of Pediatyics
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Ramesh Doshi, MD
Baard Certified Pxychiotric Medicine
13011 South 104™ Ave, Palos-Park, IL 60464
: (708) 448-3300
May 1, 2008
. Mr. Ian McFadden
President/CEQ
Roseland Community Hospital
45 West 111" Street

Chicago, IL. 60628
- Dear MI McFadden:

Thank you for sharing Roseland Community Hospital’s plan to develop an inpatient pediatric
psychiatric unit at its facilities on Chicago's Far South Side. This project has the enthusiastic
support of DCFS and will help fill a long-standing gap in these kinds of services.

I have porsonal knowledge of the shortage of pediatric psychiatric beds ow the Far South Side.

This is a densely populated area and has onc of the highest incidences for psychiatric

emergencies for youth in the State of Itlinois, DCFS data suggests that many of these patients

are roferred to hospital programs in other service areas at some distance away as a result of this

shoriage. This poses great challenges (6 these vulnerable youth to obtain snd to complete
“treatment and, of course, to their families.

Whilé I do not have a large adolescent population in my practice, [ do come across some and

know of agencics which do deal with adolescent papulations. With careful marketing attempts

they can be easily persuaded to send their patients to Roseland. If Roseland Community — ~+ 7
Hospital bad operated a unit to the kind it is propasing to develop during this past year, there is

little doubt the unit would be operating at full capacity base on the referrals it would receive. - In
eddition, we think it is very likely that area Screcning, Assessment and Support: Services (SASS)
agencies would refer to this new unit and welcome this additions! resource.,

As member of the Roseland Hospital Medical Swff in the department of psychiatry, | am grateful
to the Hospita! for recopnizing and stepping forward to meet the obvious need for this new
inpatient pediatric psychiatric unit. 1 fully support the Hospital’s application for a Certificate of
Need. Pilease let us know if we can provide any other assistance in this Process.

" Sincerely,
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If May 5, 2008

Re: Podiatric Psychiatric Unit

Dear Mr. McI'adden,

Thank you for sharing Reseiand Community Hospita} Plan

lo develop an lapatient Pediatric Psychiatric Unit at its* facility
on Chicago’s far south side. Thisisa project that is long overdue
for this aree,

As a psychiatrist { have personal knowledge of the shortage of

Pediatric psychiatric beds on the far south side. Thiyis a

dznscly populated area which has one of the highest incidences

| for paychiatric eocrgencies involving youth in the State of Tilinois.

| I obtnined this knowledge first band afer working in the emerpency
roon at Jackson Park Hospital, glong with experiencing the cheflenge

of locating inpatient peychiatric services for this population.

' T em happy to support the plan for Roseland Compnmity Hospital
grawefui that they are recognizing and stepping forward to meet

i this obvious need. I fully support the hospitsl's application for a

I Certificate of Necd. Pl_easelctmeknowiflcanheofanyﬁuther

i assistance in this proceas.

Sincercly,

Joycz R Miller, MD.,

JRM/fh

WHMRATEO_FMHAMWHDTFORW

7Y
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" Provident Hospital-of Cook Courity
600 East &tat Stroet ,
Chicago, ilinols . 80,5

© Aprif 24, 2008

Mr. lan McFadden
Prasidaent.and CEQ

. Roseland Community Hospital
45 Wes! 111th Strest
Chicago, {llincis 60628

Doar Mr. McFadden:

Thank you for sfiaring Rosetand Comriunity Hosphal's plan to develop an inpatient pediatrc”
. psychlatric unit at its facilities on Chicago’s far South Side. This project has the enthusiastio suppornt
_of DCFS and will help fill a kong-standing gap in these kinds of services.

As chalr in the Departmant of Famfly and Community Medicine at Provident Hospital of Cook
- Courity, | have personal knowledge of the shortage of padiatric psychiatric beds on the Far South
+ Sida. Thisis a densely populated area and has one of the highest incidences for psychiatric
emergenctes for youth in the State of itinols. DCES data suggests that many of thase pattonts are:
_referrad to hospial programs In other service areas at some distance away as a result of this
~ -shortage. This poses great challenges to these vuinerable youth to obtain and © complete
“treatrnant and, of course, to their families.

.Last year our agency had difficulty finding inpatient psychlatric units for refermls into Chicago area
‘hospitals.: if Roseland Communtty Hospitd! hiad operated a unit to.the kind It is proposing to develop

- -duting this past year, our agency would fikely refer pediatric patients to your hospital tb keep tham
near their famflies. ‘In addition, wa think # is vary llkely that area Screening, Asssssmeart and
Support Services (SASS) agencles wauld refer to this new unit and welcoms this additional
-Tesource. :

- Qur agency isﬁmeful 10 Roseland Community Hospital for recognizing and stepping forward to
-~ meet the 6bvidus nead for this new inpatient podiatric psychiatric unit. | am happy to hear that
- DCFS tully suppons the hospital's appfication for a Certificate of Need. Please lel Us know i we can
provide any other assistercs imthis process.. : : ooy

‘Sincerely, .,
Ciystai | hﬁg%%“/

 Departrhght of Family and Coramunity Medicing
Onlh'IE _-+dayo? .' : ‘7 _ ) mworsmemm%and o
e m ot 5l 4o — and signad the foregolng ingtrument in the above:mat‘sd capacity as -
A‘ My Qqnm_iséibnﬁxpii‘ﬁs:

» Notary Piblic .

.18
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May 29, 2008

Mr. lan McFarden
President/CEQ

Roseland Community Hospital
45 West 114% Street -
Chicago, IL 80628

Dear Mr. McFaddan;

Thank you for sharing Roseland Community Hospital's plan to develop an inpatient pedialric psychiatric
unit at its faclfities on Chicago's Fer South Side.

. The Far South Side is a densely populated area and has a high Incidence of peychiatric emergencies for
youth in the State of llincis, Data suggests that meny of these patients are referred to hospRal programs in
other service araas at some distance away as a result of this shorlage. This poses great challenges to
these vuinerable youth to obtain and to complete treatment and, of course, to their famikes. With the
pending closure of Michaet Reese Hospital thiis need becomss even mare actrte. Mercy Hospital and
Medical Center estimates three patient referrals a month fo the proposed pediatric psychiatric unit,

Mercy Hospital and Medical Conter supports Raseland Community Hospital for recognizing and stepping
forward to meet the obvious need for this new inpatient pediatric psychiatric unit. Mercy Hospital and
Mexical Center fully supports the Hospital's application for a Ceslificate of Need. Please let us know lfwa

can provide any other assistance in this process.

2 %\—"(_———
Si heita Lyne, RSM
President and Chief Executive Officer

Sincerely,

SSLfes
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May 13, 2008

lan E. McFadden, FACHE

President and Chief Executive Officer
Roseland Community Hospital

45 West 111t Street

Chicago, IL 60628

Dear Mr, 'McFadclen,.

Norwegian American Hospital posses no objection to the Roseland Community
Hospital plans to open a 30 bed adolescent psychiatric unit and would
encourage the Health Facilities Planning Board to approve a CON application
for the same, : =

éincercly.

g *& g
Michael J. O'Grady, Jr,
President

/sd

1044 N. Franciseo Avenue, Chitago, I 60622 « 773/292.8200

&2
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Emergency Medicine, Lustomer Driven, May 2, 2008

Mr. lan McFadden
President/CEQ

Roseland Community Hospital
45 West 111% Street

Chicago, IL 60628

Dear Mr. McFadden:

Thank you for sharing Roseland Community Hospital's plan to develop an inpatient pediatric
psychiatric unit at its facilities on Chicago’s Far South Side. This project has the enthusiastic support
of EmCare, Inc. and will help fill a long-standing gap in these kinds of services.

As Chief Executive Officer of EmCare, Inc. 1 have personal knowledge of the shortage of
pediatric psychiatric beds on the Far South Side. This is a densely populated area and has on¢ of the
highest incidences for psychiatric emergencics for youth in the State of Illinois. EmCare, Inc. data
suggests that many of these patients are referred to hospital programs in other service areas at some
distance away as a result of this shortage. This poses great challenges to these vulnerable youth to
obtain and to complete treatment and, of course, 1o their families.

Last year, our agency referred approximately 30 pediatric patients to inpatient psychiatric
units in Chicago area hospitals. Of these pediatric patients residing on the City's Far South Side, the
bulk of these patients were referred to other Non South Side Hospitals due to the absence on the in-
patient beds. If Roseland Community Hospital had operated a unit to the kind it is proposing to
develop during this past year, our agency likely would have referred approximately 30 of these
pediatric patients to your hospital. In addition, we think it is very likely that area Screening,
Assessment and Support Services (SASS) agencies would refer to this ncw unit and welcome this
additional resource.

Qur agency is grateful to Roseland Community Hospital for recognizing and stepping
forward to meet the obvious need for this new inpatient pediatric psychiatric unit. EmCare, Inc. fully
supports the Hospital’s application for a Certificate of Need. Please let us know if we can provide
any other asgistance in this proccss.

Sincerely,

QQ%LQM‘_@O
Name: Dougias Webster, D.O. Qs

Title: Regional Chief Executive Officer

CC: Candace Mikulecky, COO Attormey in Fact

£33 West North Avenue | 630-941-4330
Suite 102 B00-712-1066
Elmbhurst, IL 60126 630-941-4333 FAX
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iSINAI

Sinai Health SyStem coifomis avenue st 15th Sireot « Chicago, IL 60608 « (773)542-2000 - TTY (77312676269

Atan H. Channing
President/Chief Executive Officer
Cffice; 773-257-6434 — Fax; 773-257-6953

Email: chaalan@sinal.oig

April 28, 2008

- Mr. lan McFadden

Prasident/CEO

Roseland Community Hospital
45 West 111" Street

Chicago, IL 606238

Dear Mr. McFadden:

Thank you for sharing Roseland Community Hospital's plan to develop an inpatient
pediatric psychiatric unit at its facilities on Chicago's Far South Side. Mount Sinai
Hospital and the Sinai Health Systom recognize the tremendous need of child and
adolescent hehavioral health services.

As a significant inpatient provider of behavioral health services and a provider of
ambulatory child and adolescent services Sinai Health Systam recognizes the critical
need for these services throughout the Chicago area.

If such a unit were open at Roseland Community Hospital Sinai Health System would
refer all appropriate patients. In addition, we think it is very likely that area Screening,
Assessment and Support Services {SASS) agencies would refer to this new unit and
welcome this additional resource.

| Sinai Health System is grateful to Roseland Community Hospital for recognizing and

stepping forward to meet the obvious need for this new inpatient pediatric psychiatric
unit and fully supports the Hospital's application for a Certificate of Need. Please let us
know if we can gfgvide any other assistance in this process.

Mount Sinal Hospital + Schwab Rehabilitation Hospital » Sinai Community Inatitute * Sinai Medical Group
Access Community Heelth Network Affiliate = Jawish Federation of Metropolitan Chicago Affitiate

£
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 pevin McBwen Illinois Department of Children & Family Services
Mr. Ien McFadden

President/CEO

Roseland Community Hospital

45 West 111® Street -

Chicago, TL 60628

Deer Mr. McFadden:

~_ Thank you for sharing Roseland Communj‘ty Hospitai's plan to develop an inpatient pediatric
psychiatric unit at jts facilities on Chicago’s Far South Side. This project has the enthusiastic support of DCFS
and will help fill a long-standing gap in these kinds of services. .

As the Assistant Director of DCFS, ] have personal knowledge of the shortage of pediatric psychiatric
beds on the Far South Side. This is a densely populated area and has one of the highest incidences for
psychiatric emergencies for youth in the State of Illinois. DCFS data suggests that many of these patients arc
referred to hospital programs in other service areas at some distance away as a result of this shortage. This poses
great challenges to these vulnerable youth to obtajn and to complete treatment and, of course, to their families.

Last ycar, our agency referred approximately 197 pediatric patients to inpatient psychiatric units a total
of 200 times in Chicago area hospitals. Of these pediatric patients residing on the City’s Far South Side, the
bulk of these patients were referred to Chicago Lakeshore Hospital, Children’s Memorial Hospital, Harngrove
Hospital, Riveredge, Rush-Presbyterian-St, Luke’s Hespital, Streamwood St. Elizabeth’s, Streamwood $t,
Mary’s and UIC-CARTS. Ofthe wards managed by Cook South, the majority of them were hospitajized at
Hargrove and Riveredge, which are not on the south side of the city. If Roseland Cormmunity Hospital had
opeated a unit of the kind it is proposing to develop during this past year, our agency kikely would have
refarred approximately 20% of these pediatric patients to your hospital. In addition, we think it is very likety
that area Screening, Assessment and Support Services (SASS) agencics would refer to this new unit and
welcome this additional resource. .

Our agency is grateful to Roseland Community Hospital for recognizing and stepping forward to mest
the obvious need for this new inpatient pediatric psychiatric unit. DCFS fully supports the Hospital’s
application for a Centificate of Need. Plcase 1ot us know if we can provide any vther assistance in this PIOCESS.

Sincerely,

%éru Ié‘/*r-»éﬂ..__.

Velma Williams
Asgsistant Director

100 West Randelph, 6-200 « Chicago, Tllinois 60601-3249
312-814-4650 » 312-814-8783 / TTY
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March 1,2008

Mr, [an McFadden
President/CEQ

Roseland Community Hospital
45 West 111" Street

Chicago, Hlinois 60628

Dear Mr. McFadden:

“ I write to express my enthusiastic support for the Hospital’s plan to develop a separate thirty
(30) bed child and adolescent psychiatry unit. I believe this project deserves to be approved by
the Illinois Health Facilities Planning Board and offer my support of the Hospital’s application
for a Certificate of Need.

As 2 pediatrician in your area, I am well aware of the need for additional mental health
services and beds for children and adolescents. Over the past twelve (12) months, I have referred
approximately 10 patients for these kinds of services, specifically to the following facility: Christ
Hospital’s Adolescent Unit. If this project comes to fruition, I would expect to refer
approximately 10 patients to the new RCH child and adolescent psychiatric unit annually.

This would add a valuable and needed service to the Roseland community which I believe

would be well utilized in its first year. Thank you for considering my thoughts on this important
project,

Sincerety,
¢g4~%AUQKI: /Q/\\Z/ﬁ Y2 —

74
On ﬂﬁs.% of/:Z Z 2008 before me personally appeared—4/ M‘i
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L
¢ Renee L. Reed

3 Notary Publiv, Sune of HWinois
§My Commission Exp. U6/1972008
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“Restoring Hope and Health Through Wellness”
June 27, 2008

Mr. lan McFadden

President and CEO

Roseland Community Hospital
45 East 111" Street

Chicago, lllinois 60628

Regarding: Inpatient Adolescent Psychiatric Unit
Dear Mr. McFadden:

The Community Mental Health Council, Inc. (CMHC) is in support of
Roseland Community Hospital’s efforts to open an inpatient
Adolescant Psychiatric Unil.

We have been in collaborative partnerships with Roseland for mary
years and know that this is & much needed service to be provided to
the community. As with other ventures Roseland has undertaken, we
at CMHC know that this will be successful.

Sincerely,

Cari C. Beil, M.D.
President and CEO

CCB/apr
Enclosures
Cc; Juanita L. Redd, M.P.A., M.BA,
© Hayward Suggs, M.S., M.B.A. '

Verbie Jones
LaWanda Aldridge

' “SAVING
& 7 LIVES..”
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Mr. lan McFadden
President/CEQ |

Roseland Community Hospital
45 West 1117 Street

* Chicagp, L. 60628

Dear Mr. McFadden:

Thank you for sharing Roseland Community Hospital's plan to dovelop an inpaient
pediatric psychiatric anit at its facilities-on Chicego’s Far South Side. This project has the
enthusiastic support of Advocate Health Centers (AHC) and will heip fil) & long-sianding gap
in these kinds of services.

As Vice President of Medical Management of AHC, [ have personal knowledge of

the shortage of pediatric psychiatric beds on the Far South Side. This is a densely populated -

area and bas one of the highest incidences for psychiatric emergencies for youth in the State
of llinois. DCFS dats suggests that many of these patients arc referred (o hospital progams
in other service areas at some distance away as a result of this shortage. This poses great
. challenges to these vulnerable youth to obtain and to complete treatment and, of course, to
their families, .

As a-provider of pediatric care, we are always in need of pediatric psychiatric
referrals. In"addition, we think it is very likely that arca Screching, Assessment and Support
. Services (SASS) agencies would refer to this new unit and welcome this additional resource.

: AHC is grateful to Roseland Community Hospital for recognizing and sepping
- forward to meet the obvious need for this new inpatient pediatric psychiatric unit. Advocate

Health Centers fully supports the Hospital’s application for a Certificate of Need. Please let -

us know if we can provide any other assistance in this process.

Sincerely,

&m Mﬂ-ﬂ.

Name: Dr, Dianna Grant
Title: Vice President of Medicel Managment

Advocate Health Centers are a part of Advecato Heslth Care

=




ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
45 W. 1117 STREET, CHICAGO, IL

HOSPITALS WITHIN 30-MINUTE DRIVE TIME
TRAVEL TIMES & DISTANCE

TRAVEL TIME
{in minutes)

1. Children's Memorial Hospital 30
2300 N. Children's Plaza
Chicago, IL 60614

2. Northwestern Memorial Hospital 27
251 E. Huron
Chicago, IL 60611

3. Jackson Park Hospital Foundation 12
7531 S. Stony Island
Chicago, IL 60649

4. Mercy Hospital & Medical Center 19
2525 S. Michigan Ave.
Chicago, IL 60616

5. St. Bernard Hospital 14
326 W. 641 Street
Chicago, IL 60621

6. Advocate Christ Medical Center 22
4440 W. 95% Street
Qak Lawn, IL 60453

7. Ingalls Memorial Hospital 18
1 Ingalls Drive
Harvey, IL 60426

8. Little Company of Mary Hospital 16
2800 W. 95th Street
Evergreen Park, IL 60805

9. Palos Community Hospital 28
12251 80" Avenue
Palos Heights, IL 60463

DISTANCE
(in miles)

17.99

16.35

6.18

11.20

6.41

7.67

9.29

547

12.50

69 ATTACHMENT 23




TRAVEL TIME DISTANCE
{in minutes) {in miles)

10. Loretto Hospital 28 18.59
645 S. Central
Chicago, IL 60644

11, Mt. Sinai Hospital Medical Center 27 16.52
2750 W. 15t Street
Chicago, IL 60608

12. Norwegian American Hospital 30 18.07
1044 N. Francisco
Chicago, IL 60622

13. Rush University Medical Center 23 1475
| 1653 W. Congress Parkway
Chicago, IL 60612

14. St. Mary of Nazareth Hospital 27 16.64
2233 W. Division
Chicago, IL 60622

15. St. Anthony Hospital 27 15.62
2875 W. 19" Street
Chicago, IL 60623

16. St. Elizabeth’s Hospital 28 17.37
1431 N. Claremont
Chicago, IL 60622

17. UHS Hartgrove Hospital 28 18.38
520 N. Ridgeway
Chicago, IL 60624

18. University of lllinois Medical Center at Chicago 24 15.16
1740 W, Taylor Street
Chicago, IL 60612




POPULATION OF CITY OF CHICGO - U.S. CENSUS DATA

2,896,016 of which approximately 15% are between the ages of 10-19.

7/ —_— ATTACHMENT 23 —_—




H. Staffing Availability

Roseland Community Hospital has entered into a management agreement with
Chicago Lakeshore Hospital to provide the necessary personnel to staff the unit,
including a Medical Director, Psychiatrist, Program Director and Nurse Manager. Any
additional staff will be recruited by our Human Resources Department as needed. The
remaining positions of RN, LPN, Unit Clerk and Social Worker will be recruited as
needed from the existing pool of hospital professionals.

- ATTACHMENT 25
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ASSURANCES

To Whom It May Concem:

This statement is provided by Roseland Community Hospital per Section VII, K of the
Application for Permit.

Roseland Community Hospital hereby attests to the fact that, by the second year of operation
after project completion, the applicant will achieve and maintain the occupancy/utilization standards
specified in 77 Ill. Adm. Code 1100 for the Acute Mental lliness category of services involved in this
proposal.

Anthony Puorig/CEO
Roseland Community Hospital

Dated: 10/26/09

ATTACHMENT 26
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ﬁ PARK NATIONAL
BANK
August 15, 200p
Mr. Rou Krol
Chief Financiak Officer
Rossiand Community Hospital
trast

45 West 111th B
Chicago, IL 60628

Dear Ron:

Thank you for fhe opportunity to provide a financing proposal to Roseland Community Hospital
for a $2,750,00D construction loan for the hospital's new Adolescent Behavioral Health program.

To expedite the reviow of your loan reguest, please return the following items:
Fiscal year end audited {inancial statements for 2008 and 2009

[ ]

¢ Budgetfor the proposed improvements;

¢ Inferim company prepared 6/30/08 YTD and 6/30/09 YD financial statexnents;

o Proj fuading from Critical Hospital Adjustment Payments (CHAP), Direct Hospital

ents (DHA) and Safety Net Access Payment (SNAF) for 2009 & 2010,

are consuiermg Pledging for the loan, We will discuss a proposed structure and
the terms of yopr Loan request after we have an opportunity to review the requested information.

We appreciate (he relationship that we have shared over many years and the opportunity to assist
the hospital wefl with its plans. If we can be of any other assistance please do not hesitate to call

me.

20N .
A ‘
Kenneth T. Robinson

Vice President

Commercial Banking
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cGladrey &Pullen

rtified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Roseland Community Hospital Association
Ghicago, Minois '

& have audited the accompanying bafance sheats of Roseland Community Hospital Association as of March 31,
2I 07 and 2006, and the related statements of operations and changes in net assets (deficit) and cash Aows for the
years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Hospital's management. Our
LI’sponsibility Is to express an opinion on these financiat statements based on our audis,

fe conducted aur audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
ﬁr:‘ancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
sxll'pporting the amounts and disciosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimatas made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonabla basis for our opinion.

Injour opinion, the financial stalements referred to above present fairly, in all material fespects, the financial position
of|Roseland Community Hospital Assaciation as of March 31, 2007 and 2008, and the results of its operations and
changes in net assets (deficit) and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
:gjgeralry accepted in the United States of America.

|

- 2007 financial statements have been prepared assuming that Roseland Community Hospital Association wil
co }tinue 8s @ going concem. As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, Roseland Community Hospital
geperated significant losses from operations in racent years, has a significant net working capital deficiency, and has
a
lo |
fin

Fﬁcit net assets position. This raises substantial doubt about Roseland Community Hospital Assodiation's ability
ontinue as a going concem., Management's plans in regard to these matters are described in Note 2. The
ncial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

i
I
|
0
I
B
| |
i To the Board of Directors
|
_
]
1
1
|
I
i
1
I
I
|
|
|

) MeBlidsny f futng | corm

l Rockford, llinois
. January 24, 2008

MoGlagey & Pullan, LLP I3 a member fiem of RSM Intematonal -
an afiiiation of saparate anc ndependent legal entities,
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

BALIANCE SHEETS
Mar¢h 31, 2007 and 2006
ASS — 2007 2006
Cw{nt Assets
Cash $ 492872 % 369,053
ts limited as to use - cumrent portion 1,000,384 544
Patient accounts receivable, net of allowances for uncollectible accounts
{ approximately $22,608,000 in 2007 and $14,902,000 in 2006 5,338,743 4,866,327
Due from third-party payors 191,200 67,207
Medicaid assessment revenue receivable 5,384,164 5,384,164
Pledges and other recsivables 238,340 165,519
Inventories 156,744 162,546
Prepaid expenses 54,911 93295
Total current assets 12,867,358 11,138,655
Asseclis Limited as to Use, net of current porfion:
Under malpractice funding agreement - held by trustse 234 15,417
By Board of Directors for capital improvements 2,955,398 54,265
2,955,632 69,682
Cash restricted by Grantor for property and equipment 672,417 -
Investments 48,342 76,165
Propelty and equipment, net 7,055,181 7,317,164
Other fong-ferm assets 84,609 206,327

See Notes to Financial Statements,

§  23.693,539 $ 18,807,993

‘
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) 2007 2008
Cumeit Liabilities
Linelof credit $ 1154506 $§ 2,790,000
Current installments of obligations under capital leases 221,493 203,065
Accgunts payable 7,402,939 6,467,732
Due|to third-party payors 7,824,315 . 5,789,455
Medjcaid assessment tax payable 1,093,881 1,093,881
Accnied interest 363 544
Accried expenses and other - 2,256,189 1,864,306
Total current [fabiiltles 19,953,686 18,208,984
Commitments and Conlingencies (Notes 3, 7, 9, 10, 11, and 15)
Obligations Under Capital Leases, nef of current installments 171,632 393,125
Professional Liability 5,940,986 5,248,006
Total liabilities 25,066,304 23,850,205
Net Assets (Deficit)
Unrestricted (deficit):
Bokrd designated 3,955,782 54,809
Undesignated {9,006,967) (6,702,812
(5,051,185) (6,648,103)
Temporarily restricted 2,678,420 1,605,891
Total net assets (deficit) (2,372,765) (5,042,212}
$ 23693539 § 18807993
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

STATEMENTS OF OPERATICNS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

Years|Ended March 31, 2007 and 2006

- 2007 2006
Revenues:
Net patient service revenue  ~ 48,262,376 § 35,464,142
Medicaid hospital assessment revenue 7,178,885 6,475,794
Other operating revenue 713,401 866,534
Net assets released from restrictions, used for operations 11,159 198,705
56,155,821 46,009,175
Expel ses!
Salaries and wages 17,871,937 17,903,469
Employee benefits 3,482,396 3,076,583
Phylsician campensation 2,296,748 2,877,760
Mecﬁicaid hospital assessment tax 1,458,508 1,520,709
Food 316,555 361,705
Utilities 787,253 715,485
Repairs and maintenance 393,103 649,081
Insurance 1,431,998 1,554,021
SupEi:s and other 11,217,212 12,614,637
Intersst 376,432 254,137
Depreciation and amortization 654,646 707415
Provision for uncollectible accounts 15,062,133 10,123,249
55,348,921 52,358,231
Qperating income (loss) 816,900 {6,349,056)
Nonoperating income:
Investrment income 2,513 - 20,783
Gain on sale of property and equipment 116,212 -
Cther, net 661,273 447,691
780,018 468,474
Excess (deficlency} of revenues over expenses 1,556,918 §  (5880,582)

(Continued)
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES N NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) {Continued)
Years Ended March 31, 2007 and 2006

— 2007 2006
- Unrastricted Net Assets (Deficit)
ss (deficiency) of revenues over expenses $ 1,596,918 §  (5,880,582)
ntributions for property and equipment - 246,219
Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets (deficit) 1,596,918 (5,634,363)
Change in Temporanly Restricted Net Assefs (Deficit)
Contributions and grant 1,083,688 -
Net assets released from restrictions (11,159) (198.705)
Increase (decraase) in temporarily restricted net
assets (deficit) 1072529 (198,705)
Increase (decrease) in net assets (deficit) 2,669,447 (5,833,068)
Net assets {deficit), beginning of the year {5,042.212) 790.856

Net assets (deficit), end of the year $ (2312765 $ {5,042.212)
eSSl 9 [9,06,.274)

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended March 31, 2007 and 2006
T 2007 2006
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Increase (decrease) in net assets (deficit) § 2669447 §  (5833,068)
A&]ustments to reconcile increase (decrease} in net assets {deficit)
o net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreclation and amortization 654,646 707,415
Provision for uncoilectible accounts 15,082,133 10,123,249
Gain on sake of property and equipment (116,212 -
Contributions for property and equipment (1,083,588) {246,219)
ncrease (decrease) from changes in:
Patient accounts receivable {15,934,549) (9,237,085)
Due from/to thind-party payors 1,910,866 5,385,778
Medicaid assessment recelvable and payable - (4,290,283)
Pledges and other roceivables (72,829) 231,585
Inventories 5,802 (20,473)
Prepaid expenses 28,384 210,736
Other long-term assels 111,718 {61,110)
Accounts payable 835,207 1,129,980
Accrued interest (181) {59,215)
Accrued expenses and other 391,883 120,103
Professional liability 692,890 481,096
Net cash providad by {used In) operating activities 5,655,529 (1,357.481)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of assets limited as lo use and mvestments (11,518,782) {2,957 434)
Proceeds from assets limited as to use and investments 7,660,815 4,700,849
Céntributions receivad for property and equipment 1,083,688 246,219
Inérease in cash restricted by Grantor for property and equipment (672,417) -
Proceeds from sate of tong-term asset 316,138 -
PL'm:hase of property and equipment, net {592,589) {917,625)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (3,723,147} 1,072,008
Caslli Flows from Financing Activities
Net proceeds from (payments on) fine of credit (1,635,494} 1,307,500
Repayment of long-term debt . (1,470,000}
Repayment of capital lease obligations {203,065) {204 ,889)
Net cash (used in} financing activities (1,838,559) (367,385)
Net in¢crease (decrease] in cash 93,819 {652,861)
Cash, beginning of year 399,053 1,051.914
Cash, end of year $ 492872 S 399,053
{continued)
-6-
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
Years Ended March 31, 2007 and 2006

2007 2006.
Suppiemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Infarmation
Cash paid for interest $ 376613 3 313,352
Supplemental Schedute of Noncash Investing and Financing Activities
Purchase of equipment in accounts payable 180,643

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION - | 1

Notes to Financlal Statements

te 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policles

Nature of organization; Roseland Community Hospital Association (Hospital), a not-for-profit corporation, operates a
short-term general acute care community hospital and various clinics. The Hospital provides general health care
sQrvices to residents within its gecgraphic service area, including Inpatient, outpatient, emergency room, physician,
and other services.

A summary of significant accounting policies foliows:

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions

that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabiliies and discosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date

of|the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual

results coukd differ from those estimates. The use of estimates and assumptions in the preparation of the

ag mpanying financial statements is primanly related to the determination of the patient receivables and settiements
'Ih third-party payors and the accrual for professional fiability. Due to uncertainties inherent in the estmation and
sumption process, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in these estimates and assumptions in the near

term would be material to the financial statements.

Cash: Throughout the year, the Hospital may have amounts on deposit with financial institutions in excess of those
ingured by the FDIC. Management does not believe this presents a significant risk to the Hospital.

Pllient accounts receivable, provision for uncollectible accounts and due from/to third-party payors: The collection of

receivables from third-party payors and patients is the Hospital’s primary source of cash for operations and is critical
toiits operating performance. The primary colfection risks refate to uninsured patient accounts and patient accounts
fojnwhich the primary insurance payor has paid, but patient responsibility amounts (deductibles and co-payments)
remain outstanding. Patient recefvabies, where a thind-parly payor is responsible for paying the amount, are camied
at'@ net amount detenmined by the original charge for the service provided, less an estimate made for contractual

adjustments or discounts provided to third-party payors.

PJtienl receivables due directly from the patients are camied at the original charge for the service provided less
anbounls covered by third-party payors and less an estimated allowance for doubtful receivables. Management
estimates this allowance based on the aging of its accounts receivable and its histarical collection experience for
each payor type. Recoveries of receivables previously written off are recorded as a reduction of bad debt expense
when received.

The past-due status of receivables is determined on a case-by-case basis depending on the payor responsible.
Interest is generally not charged on past-due accounts.

Receivables or payables relatad to estimated settlements on various payor contracts, pimarily Medicare, are
reported as amounts due from or to third-parly payors. Significant changes in payor mix, business office operations,
economic conditions or trends in federal and state governmental health care coverage could affect the Hospital's
collection of accounts receivabie, cash flows and results of operations.

Invantories: Inventories of supplies are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market.
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OSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

otes to Finaneiai Statements

Jote 1 Nature of Organlization and Summary of Slgnificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments and assets fimited as to use: Assets limited as to use consist primarily of investment securities.
Ifvestments in money market accounts are measured at fair value which approximates cost Investments in equity
securities with readily determinable fair values and debt securities are cartied at fair value. The fair values are

e}ﬁmated based on quoted market prices for those or similar invastments, The change in net unrealized gains and

logses in the value of investments is recognized as 2 change in net assets. Assets limited as to use Include assets
set aside by the Board of Directors (Board) for capital improvements and other purposes, over which the Board
retains control and may at its discretion subsequently use for othar purposes; assets hekd by a trustee lo be used in
accordance with requirements of a bond Indenture agreement; assets held by a trustee to be used in accordance
with the requirements of a line-of-credit agreement; and assets held by atrustee to be used in accordance with the
ﬁuirements of a self-insurance trust agreement. Assets limited as to use that are required for obligations classified
curment fiabilities are reported in current assets. Assets limited as to use are classified as noncurent assets (o the
extent they are not expected fo be expended to satisfy obligations classified as cumment liabilities.

Invastments are regufarly evaluated for impairment. The Hospital considers faclors affecting the investee, factors
affecting the industry the investes operates within, and general debt and equity market trends. The Hospital
copsiders the length of time an investment's fair value has been below camying value, the near-term prospects for

tovery to carmying value, and the intent and ability to hotd the investment untif maturity or market recovery is
realized. If and when a detenination is made that a decfine in fair value below the cost basis is other than
terpporary, the related investment is written down to its estimated fair vatus and included in excess of revenues over
exrenses as a component of investment income.

Property and equipment: Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depregiation is provided aver the estimated
us?ful iife of each class of depreciable asset and is computed on the straight-iine method. Leased equipmant under
capital leases is amortized-over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful life. The estimated usefu! lives of
depreciabie praperty and equipment range from 5 to 25 years for land improvements, 10 to 40 years for buildings,
and 3 fo 20 years for fumiture and fixtures. Amertization expense on assets acquired under capital leases is included
witl|1 depreciation expense on owned assets. Interest cost incurred on bomowed funds during the period of
construction of capital assets is capitalized as a camponent of the cost of acquiring those assets.

Gifts of long-lived assets, such as land, buildings, or equipment, are reported as unrestricted support and are

- included in the income or loss from operations unless explicit donor stiputations specify how the donated assets must

be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with explic?t restrictions that specify how the assets are used and gifts of cash or
om?r assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor
stipplaticns about how long those long-lived assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported
when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.

Other long-term assets: Included in this balance is a cerfificate of deposit which has been pledged in support of a
loan for the benefit of Hospitai Laundry Services, LLC, a shared laundry service company thal provides senvices to
the ﬁmpﬂal. The balance of the certificate of deposit for the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2006 was
approximately $64,000 and $61,000, respectively,

Professional liability: The provision for professiona liability includes estimates of the uitimate costs for known claims
as well as claims incurred but ot reported. The provision is actuarially determined.

.9-
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOGIATION

Nates to Financial Statements

e1. Nature of Organlzation and Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies (Continued)

estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive
iustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period (he related services are rendered and adjusted in future

riods, as final settiements are determined.

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses: The statements of operations and changes in net assets include
excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses which represents results of operations. Changes in unrestricted net
assets, which are exciuded from the results of operations, consistent with industry practice, include unrealized gains
and lossas on investments and contributions of long-ived assets (including assets acquired using contributions which
by donor restriction were to be used for the purpose of acquiring such assets).

income {loss): The statements of operations and changes in net assets include operating income (loss).
nanges in unrestricted nat assets, which are excluded from operating income {loss), include investment income,
gains and losses from sales of long-tarm assets, and other revenue, net, which management views as outside of

normal activity.

CILarilg care: The Hospital provides care to patients who mest certain criteria under its charity care policy without
charge or at amounts less than established rates. Because the Hospita! does not pursus collection of amounts
détermined to qualify as chartty care, they are not reported as revenue.

is of presentation; The Hospital may classify its net assets into three categories, which are unrestricted,
temporanily restricted, and permanently restricted.

Unrestricted net assets are reflective of revenues and expenses associated with the principal operating activities of
the Hospital and are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarity restricted net assets are those whose use by the Hospital has been fimited by donors to a specific time
périod or purpose.

Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donors to be maintained in pemetuity.

Donor-restricted gifts: Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to the Hospital are reported at fair value
atl the date the promise is received. Conditional promises to give and indication of intentions to give are reported at
fa‘fr value at the date the gift is received. The gifts are reported as either femporarily or permanently restricted

support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor resfriction
eg:im, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporanily restricted

nét assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the statements of changes in nei assels as net
assets released from restrictions. Donor-estricted contributions whase restrictions are met within the same year as
reloeived are reported as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying financial statements,

Tax-gxempt status: The Hospital is a not-for-profit corporation as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the intemal
Rilwenue Code (IRC) and is exempt from Federal income taxes on related incoma pursuant to Secticn 501(a) of the

Code.

-10-
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OSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

es to Financial Statements

Note 2. Continuing Operations

& accompanying financiai statements have been prepared on the basis of a going concem, which contemplates
th realization of agsets and discharge of habilities in the ordinary course of business. The Hospital expsrienced
significan! fosses from operations in recent years and has also expenienced difficuity in generating sufficient cash
flow to meet its obligations and sustain its operations during that time.

The Hospital engaged a consulting firm and began a process to reduce expenses, restructure operations and recruit
ngw management team members. The effects of these changes began during the year and continue subseguertly.

e Hospitaf's abifity to sustain its operations is dapendent upen its ability to (a) generate cash flow to meet its
obligations on a timely basis, (b) obtain additiona financing (as may ba required), and {c) ulimately aftain profitability.

nagement belleves they will be able to sustain fiture operations through actions completed and planned, inciuding
but not limited to the following:

Ggvemance and Management:

* InJuly 2007, the Hospital hired a permanent CFO, Anthony J. Puomo, FHFMA, FACHE, who brings a
wealth of knowledge to the Hospital. Mr. Puomo is one of few healthcare professionals that have dual
Feltowship status in both the American College of Heaithcare Executives and Healthcare Financial
Management Association. Mr. Puorro has sxtensive experience with tum-asound hospital operations.

» Management continues to modify operations with an improved emphasis of quality registraticn. The Hospital
- has recently increased efforts regarding Medical Assistance applications for patients being treated at the
Hospital.

Operationat:

» The Hospital has received net funding of $5,720,000 fram the Provider Tax pertaining to the State Fiscal
Year 2007. These funds will provide the Hospital with the abifity to continue madification of operations and
additional funding for capital projects. (See alse Note 3)

+  The Hospital is planning several capital projects including the construction of a new Emergency Room,
several exterior renovations, the leasing of space in a new medical office building and the creation of an
inpatient Behavioral Health Unit. The Hospital has evaluated the impact of these projects and beleves they
will have a positive impact on the Hospital's bottom line.

Management believes that these and other actions will favorably affect operating results; however, there can be no

asslirances that these actions will be sufficient to ensure the Hospital's iong-term future,

The|Hospital's existence is substantially dependent on its ability to consistently improve operations, generate positive
casl flows and increase its working capital. Because the long-term funding of the State of linois Medicaid program,
inciuding the Medicaid Hospital Assessment Pragram, and the outcome of management’s efforts to consistently
achieve accreditation, profitable operations, positive cash flows and increased working capital cannot be determined,
no adjustments 1o the accompanying financial statements relating 1o this uncertainty have been made.

107)
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

Notes to Financlal Statements

Nate 3. Net Patlent Service Revenue and Subsequent Event

different from its established rates. Contractual adjustments undsr third-party reimbursement programs represent the
difference between the Hospital's bilings at list price and the amounts reimbursed by Medicare, Medicaid, Blue
Crpss, and certain other third-party payors; and any differences between estimated third-party reimbursement
setflements for prior years and subsequent final settements. Contractual adjustments under third-party
reimbursement programs are accrued on an estimated basis in the perod the related services are rendered and are
adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined. A summary of the basis of reimbursement with major

third-party payors follows:

Madicare: The Hospitat is paid for inpatient acute care and outpatient care services rendered to Medicare program
beneficiaries under prospectively determined rates per discharge (Prospective Payment Systems). These ratas vary
according to a patient classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. Inpatient non-
acute services and defined capital and medical education costs refated to Medicare beneficiaries are paid based
upon a cost reimbursement method, established fee screens, or a combination thereof. The Hospital's classification
~ of patients under Prospective Payment Systems and the appropriateness of the patient's admissions are subject to
vahdaﬂon reviews. The Hospital is reimbursed for cost reimbursable items at tentative rates with final setttement
delermined after submission of annual reimburssment reports by the Hospital and audrts by the Medisare fiscal

int lmedlary

'ﬂ'& Hospital has agreaments with third-party payors which provide for reimbursement to the Hospital at amounts

Fiscal year 2008 will represent the first of a three-year phase-in period for implementation of revised Medicare

Diggnosis Related Group (DRG}) reimbursement system. This new payment methodology makes meaningful

refinements to the cumrent CMS classification system to increase recognition of severity of ilness. However, there

wifl be 2 limited impact on payments in specific DRGs because of the simultaneous implementation of incremental
s for cost-based and severity-based payments. Management has not determined the reimbursement impact of

this change in reimbtirsement for the Hospfal,

Medicaid: The Hospitat is reimbursed at prospectively determined rates for each Medicaid inpatient discharge.
Oufpatient services are reimbursed based on established fee screens, For inpatient acute care services, payment

ﬁs vary according to a patient classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. The
prospectively determined rates ane not subject to retroactive adjusiment. The Hospital also receives incremental
Medicald reimbursement for specific programs and services at the discretion of the State of lllinois Medicaid
ngmm Mediicaid reimbursement may be subject to periodic adjustment, as well as to changes in existing payment
levels and rates, based on the amount of funding available fo the Medicaid program.

Subsequent to March 31, 2007 the Hospital recaived a letter from the Office of inspector General (OIG) related to an
mtegnty audit covering the peried of May 1, 2004 through April 30, 2006. Because of the significant number of
regords requested that were not produced during the audit, the OIG identifted overpayments of approximately
$1]786,000 and issued a waming to the Hospital. If subsequent audits show no material decrease in the number of
missing records, further sanctions including, but not limited ta suspension or exclusion from the State of lllincis
MTimid Program are possible. The Hospita! is in the process of appealing the findings of the audit and has
included the Kability in the due to third-party payor line in the balance shest.

Blue Cross: The Haspital 2lso participates as a provider of health care services under a reimbursement agreement

Blue Cross. The provisions of this agreement stipulate that services will be reimbursed at a tentative
reimbursement rate and that final reimbursement for these services is determined after the submission of an annual
cost report by the Hospital and a review by Blue Cross,

-12-
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY KOSPITAL ASSOCIATION
N tes to Financial Statements

Noate 3. Net Patent Service Revenue and Subsequent Event {Continued)

Managed Care Organizations: The Hospital has-also entered into reimbursement agreements with certain
commercial insurance cariers, heatth maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations. The basis
for|payment under these agreements includes discounts from established charges and prospectively determined per

diem rates.

A summary of gross and net patient service revenues for the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2006 follows:

2007 2006
Gross patient service revenue § 14223248 § 93,291,299
Physician service revenue 317,741 - 548707
Less provision for contractual adjustments under third-party
imbursement programs, charity care, and other discounts and
diowances (86.278613) (55,373,864
Net patient service revenue $ 48262376 _§ 38,464,142

Estimates for cost report settlements and contractual allowances can differ from actual reimbursements based on the
resqlts of subsequent reviews and cost report audits. Changes in third-party valuation allowances that relate to prior
years are reported in revenue in excess of expenses in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assefts. The impact of such lams on revenus in excess of expenses was a decrease of approximately $971,000 and
$1,268,000 for the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2006, respeciively.

a result, there is at least a reasonable passibiity that recorded estimales will change by a material amount in the near
terml. The Hospital's management believes that It is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and is not
awale of any pending or threatened investigations involving allegations of potsntial wrongdaoing. While no such

regu| tory inquiries have been made, compliance with such laws ang regulations can be subject to future govemnment
review and inferpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fings, penalties, and exclusion from the
Medicare and Medicaid programs. :

Le::; and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to interpretation. As

Dun'rlrg fiscal year 2007, the Medicaid Hospital Assessment Program (Program) was renewed for the peried from
August 2005 to June 30, 2008. Under the Program, the Hospital received additional Medicaid reimburserment from
the Slate of inois (State) and paid a related assessment, Total reimbursement revenue recognized by the Hospital
relatad to this Program amounted to $7,178,885 and $6,479,794 during the Hospital's years anded March 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively. Total assessments incurred by the Hospital related to this program amounted to $1,458,508
and $1,520,709 during the Hospital's years ended March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Continuation of this
program past June 2008 is uncertain at this fime.

.18
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SELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

Nptes to Financial Statements

Note 4 Concentrations of Credit R]_sk

He Hospilal grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents and are insured under
ird-party payor agreements. The mix of receivablas from patients and third-party payors at March 31, 2007 and

06 was as follows:
2007 2008
Madicare 13 % 16 %
Medicaid 28 30
Managed care 14 10
Patients 42 40
Other 3 4
: 1 y 00 9

* Note 3. Assets Limited as to Use and Investments

The compasition of assets limited as to use at March 31, 2007 and 2006 is as follows:

2007 2006
Under bond indenture agreements - held by trustee,
U.S. govemment obligations $ B4 3 544
Under line-of-credit agreement - held by trustee,
Maney market 1,000,000 .
Under malpractice funding agreement - held by trustee,
1).5. govemment obligations 24 15417
By Beard for capital |mprovements
Money market 2902832 3,785
U.S. govemment gbligations 52,566 50,480
Total assets fimited or restricted as to use 3,856,016 70,226
Less cumrent portion 1,000,384 544
§ 2055832 § 69,682

Invesiments consist of a money market account of $48,342 and $78,165 al March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

= R MMM W W OTW E AN W NN I W B B N B B M NS N Em AN om e

investmenl securities, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall market
vofatmty Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is reasonably possible that changes
in the value of invastment secunities will occur in fhe near term and that such changes could materially affect the
amounts reported in the balance sheet.

m | T
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

tes to Financlal Statements

NLta §. Charity Care {Unaudited)

Hospital maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity care it provides. For the years ended
reh 31, 2007 and 2006, the Hospital provided approximatsly $3,546,000 and $3,351,000 of charity care,
pectively, based on charges foregone for services rendered.

Note 7. Property and Equipment and Subsequent Event

A summary of property and equipment at March 31, 2007 and 2006 is as follows:

2007 2006
nd $ 380477 § 380,477
Land improvements 403,347 403,347
Buildings 5,980,389 6,328,127
Building improvements 5,050,423 5,054,454
jor movable and fixed equipment 10,757,585 10,671,553
nslruction-in-progress 4,041,154 3,557,975
Equipment under capital lbase 2,420,506 . 2,420,506

29,033,881 26,816,439

-

555 accumulated depreciation and amortization,
including amortization of equipment under capital :
lease of $2,093,143 in 2007 and $1,908,?85 in 2006 21,978,700 21,499,275

§ 7055181 $  7.317.184

Construction-in-progress at March 31, 2007 and 2006 consisted primarily of costs incumed for various construction
and renovation projects. The most significant project in process at March 31, 2007 is the expansion of the Hospital's
emergency room from 4,500 square feet to 10,500 square feet. The emergency room project is currently on hold
Irtding funding from future grants and other sourcas of funding. The estimated cost to complete the emergency
room proect is approximately $3,800,000 as of March 31, 2007.

Subsequent to March 31, 2007, the Hospital entered info a cantract related 1o the emergency room project in the
anfount of approximately $1,556,000 and was afso approved for a long-term low interest loan through the lljinois
Heéalth Facility Planning Board's Hospital Basic Services Preservation Act in the amount of $2,200,000. The rate wil

determined upon execution of the note. The Hospitaf's original application was for $5,000,000: however, the
application is under review for this additional amount. This loan is to be used for improvements to the Hospital's
emergency room. At the date of this report, the client had not drawn any amounts under this loan.

Nole 8. Note Payable, ‘Pledged Assets and Subsequent Event

The Hospital has a revolving line-of-credit agreement with a bank which provides for total borrowings of up to
$2/800,000. The ling is coliateralized by substantially all assets of the Hospital. The agresment expired June 30,
20b7. Interest is paid monthly at the prime rate (8.25% at March 31, 2007) plus 1%. The outstanding balance on this
ling was $1,154,506 at March 31, 2007. Subsequent to March 31, 2007, the Hospital paid off the line-of-credit.

-15-
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 9. Lease Obligations

THe Hospital has entered info capital lease obligations at varying rates of mterest from 7% to 12%, which are
lateralized by leased equipment.

Fulure minimum lease commitments under capital leases for equipment as of March 31, 2007 are as shown below:

Years Ending March 31,

2008 $ 245,899

2009 129,251

2010 51,481

Tota! required minimum lease payments 426,631
{ ess amount representing interast 33,506
Net present value of minimum lease payments 393,125
Less cumrent portion 221,493
Long-term portion $ 171,532

The Hospilal also leases squipment undsr operating leases. Minimum annual rental payments are as follows:

Year Ending March 31,

2008 $ 80,605
2009 57.488
$ 136093
Rent expense for the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2006 was approximately $554,000 and $605,000,
respectively.

Note 10. Pension Plan

The Hospital has a voluntary defined contribution pension plan (Plan) covering substantially all employees who work
atlleast 1,000 hours annually, are aver age 21, and have at least two years of service. Hospital coniribution
uirements under the terms of the Plan are computed at 2% of an eligible employee’s first $20,000 of salary and
4% of salary eamed thereafter. Eligible employees may elect to contribute 2% of their first $20,000 of safary and
4.7% of salary eamed thereafter, thereby increasing the Hospital's contribution requirements fo 3% and 6%,
respectively. Beginning in 1997, participants may also elect to make additional voluntary contributions which are not
matched by the Hospital. Pension expange under the terms of the plan of approximately $750,008 and $217,000 for
the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively, is included in employee benefits expense in the
mpanying financial statements. Pension expense is funded on a current basis.

¥ nng the year ended March 31, 2007, the Hospital became aware of an underfunding of this pension fiability in the
amouni of approximately $400,000, including interest and penalties. This amount is included in accrued expenses
and employee benefits expanse in the accompanying financial statements.
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OSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITA.L ASSOCIATION

otes to Financial Statements

Jote 11.  Self-lnsurance ~ Accrued Professional Llabliity and General Liability

The Hospital is-involved in liigation under various matiers arising in the ordinary course of business. Substantially all

claims refated to incidents occurming prior to 1976 are covered by commercial insurance. Effective for the periods

st:e 1976 the Hospital has adopted a selt-insurance program for professional (medical malpractice) and general

|I?b||lty claims. For various years in this time frame, the Hospital has also obtained excess medicat malpractica
urance coverage from commencial insurance carriers.

in connection with fts selfHnsurance program, the Hospital engaged the services of a professional consultant for
actuarial evaluations of self-nsured funding requirements and designated attomeys to handle legal matters relating

tq professional and general liabilty claims. The Hospital also established a trust fund with an independent trust agent
far the proper administration and protection of the assets designated for professional and general liability claims.

Under the trust agreement, the trust fund assets are only i be used for the self-insurance program and are not
avaifable for the general operations of the Hospital.

ulimate cost of asserted and unasserted seif-insured claims identified under the Hospital's incident reporting

em, as well as estimates of claims incurmed but not reported, are accrued hased on estimation methodologies
tr{at incorporate the Hospital's past experience, as well as ather considerations inciuding the nafure of each claim or
incident and relevant frend factors. Accrued professional and general liabillty ¢laim losses have been discounted at
6% for 2007 and 2006. The portion of the accrual for estimated professional and general fiabifity claims expected to
be paid within one year of the balance sheel date is not readity determinable and, therefore, the entire accrual
amount is classified as a nencurrent liability. An accruai for possible lesses attributable to incidents that may have
otcurred, but that have not been identified under the incident reporting system is included in this liability. If accrued

alpractice losses had not been discounted, the estimated liability would be approximately $834,00¢ and $1,033.000

higher than the amounts recorded in the balance sheets as of March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively,

5l if-insured professional and general liability expense of approximately $1,082,000 in 2007 and $1,185,000 in 2006
has been included with insurance expense in the accompanying statements of operations and changes in nel assets.

At this time, there is no excess insurance coverage.
Note 122 Investment in Limited Partnership and Subsequent Event

TlFe Hospital contributed $150,000 during 1992 as a limited partner in the Morgan Park Professional Centre Limited
Pan‘.nershlp As a limited partner, the Hospital's liability is fimited to the amount of its confributions and it has no
resp-onsmlhty for managing parinership affairs. Partnership operations began in July 1992. The Hospital's
mirestment which is accounted for on the equity methed, is included in other long-term assets in the accompanying
balanoe sheets. The Hospital's proporticnate share of the partrership's operations included net income of
approxlmalely $207,000 and $81,000 in 2007 and 2006, respactively, which is included with other nonoperating
income in the accompanying statements of operations and changes in net assets. During 2007, the Hospital sold its
inyestment in Morgan Park.
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

Ndtes to Financial Statements

Nite13.  Temporarly and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

of March 31, 2007, temporasily restricted net assets consisted of $2,625,081 for emergency room renovations;
$14,594 for capital campaign fundralsing costs; and, $38,745 for other programs. As of March 31, 2008, temporarily
restricted net assets consist of $1,545,081 for emergency room renovations; $11,152 for bioterrorism; $10,306 for

capital campaign fundraising costs; and, $38,745 for other programs.

There are no permanently resticted net assets as of March 31, 2007 and 2006.

“Note 14.  Functlonal Expenses

The Hospital provides general health care services o residents within Its gecgraphic location. Expenses related to
ptoviding these services were as follows for the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2006

2007 2006

5 39,207,734 § 37,314,166
16,051,187 15,044,065
§ 55M8921 § 52358231

Health care services
BGeneral and administrative

Gertain costs have been allocated among the health care services and general and administrative expenses.

Note 45.  Commitments and Contingencles

Medicare Reimbursement: Furiher changes in Medicare reimbursement as a result of the Centers for Medicare &
Wedicaid Services' {CMS) implementation of the provisions of future Medicare legislation may have an adverse effect

on the Hospital's net patiert service revenue.

Medicaid Reimbursement Due to the Hospital's relatively high Medicaid patient volume, the Hospital receives

:-iidditional reimbursement ($9,102,848 in 2007 and $5,566,163 in 2006} in the form of critical hospital adjustment
ayments (CHAP), direct hospital adjustments {DHA) and safety net access payments (SNAP), the majority of which

ils provided by the lllinois Medicaid program. The amount of additional reimbursement from the illinois Medicaid ]

program which will ba made to hospitals in the future is uncertain, and fture legislative changes to reimbursements

provided to hospitals could have a material adverse effect on the Hospital's cperating results. |

L\edicaid Hospital Assessment Program: As described in Note 3, CMS approved State |legislation for the Program
relating to the period through June 2008. Receipt and timing of such future Program payments is dependent on |
future actions of the State. No receivable or payable for amounts applicable to periods after March 31,2007 have

heen recorded.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 15.  Commitments and Contingencles (Continued)

igafion: The Hospital is involved in ltigation arising in the normal course of business. With the exception of one
er, in consultation with legal counsel, management estimates that these matters will be resolved without material
verse effect on the Hospital's financial position or results of operations. The Hospital is the defendant in a mattar
which the jury verdict was overtumed by the judge. A new trial on damages has been ordered by the judge.
Legal counsel and management estimate that the probable cutcome of this matter will be material to the Hospital's
financial position. This matter was considered by the actuary and management in determining the professional

tion: The U.S. Department of Justice, other federal agencias and the lllingis Departmeni of
Public Aid routinely conduct regulatory investigations and compliance audits of health care providers. The Hospital is
subject to these reguiatory efforts. Management is curently unaware of any regulatory matters which may have a
magterial effect on the Hospital's financial pasition or results from operation,

Note 16.  Pending Adoptions of New Accounting Principles

InJuly 2006, the FASB issued Inlerpretation No, 48 (FIN 48), Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an
interpretation of SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
ingome taxes recognized in an enterprise's financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for
Intome Taxes. FIN 48 prescribes a compretiensive mode for recagnizing, measuring, presenting and disclosing in
thé financial statements tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax retum. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal
y&'ars beginning after December 15, 2006. The Hospital is currently evaluating the impact of FIN 48-on its financial
statements.

IniSeptember 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. The
requirements of SAFS No, 157 are effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
Navember 15, 2007, The Hospital is currently evaluating the impact of SFAS Na. 157 on its financiat statements.

-19-
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McGladrey & Pullen

Certified Public Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Te the Board of Directors
Rosetand Communtty Hospital Assoclation
Cricago, Ninois

Wa have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Roseland Community Hospital Association, as of March n,
2006 and 2005, and the related statements of operations and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years
then ended. These finangial statements are the responsibifity of the Hospital's management. Our respansibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with audiing standards generally accapled in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. These standards require that we plan and perform the audit o obtain
reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements are fres of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, An audit
alsa includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion,

In our apinion, the financlal statements refered t above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Foseland Community Hospita! Association as of March 31 » 2008 and 2005, and the results of its operations and
changes in net assats and its cash flows for the years then ended in canformity with accourting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

The 2008 financial statements have been prepared assuming that Roseland Community Hospital Assaciation wil
continue as a going concem. As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, Roseland Community Hospitaf
generated a significant loss from operations In the year ended March 31, 2008, has a net working capital deficiency,
and has decreasing levels of net assets. This raises substantial doubt about Roseland Community Hospital
Asscciation's ability to continue as a going concam. Managementss plans in regard to these matters are described in
Note 2. The financial statements do not Include any adjustments that might result from the outeome of this
uncertainty,

In accordance with Government Audting Standards, we have also issued our report dated Apnit 30, 2007, on our
cons deration of Roseland Community Hospital Association’s imfernal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regufations, contracts and grant agreements and ather matters. The
purpose of that repert is to describe the scope of our testing of intemnal control over financial reporting and
comehance and the results of that testing, and notto provide an opinfon on the intemal control over financial
reporting or on compliance, That report is an integral part of an audit performad in accordance with Govemment
Auditng Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

/%c.%//mf&,,_/ e

Rackford, llinois
April 20, 2007

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP is a member frm of RSM Internationa —
&n fllaten of separate snd imlependent ing2 envbas.
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

BALANCE SHEETS
March 31, 2006 and 2005
ASSETS ' 2006 2005
Curme 1t Assefs
Cas=h $ 399053 $ 1,051,914
Assets fimited as to use 544 1,465,593
Patient accounts receivable, net of aliowancas for uncollectible accounts
of approximately $14,902,000 in 2006 and $11,319,000 in 2005 4,866,327 5752511
Due from third-party payars 67,207 4,339,818
Medicaid assessment nevenue receivable 5,384,164 -
Pledges and other receivables o 165,519 397,104
Inventorles 162,546 - 142,073
Pre >aid expenses 93,295 304,031
Total current assets 11,138,655 13,453,044

Assels Limited as o Usé, net of current portion:

Under malpractice funding agreement - held by trustee 15,417 3,067
By Board of Directurs for capital improvements 54,265 276,885
69,682 275,852

Invesiments 76,165 144,261
Property and Equipment, nat 7,317,164 6,926,311
Other Long-Term Assets 206,327 - 145,217

$ 18807993 § 20048785

See Notes to Firancial Statements.
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LIAEILITIES AND NET ASSETS T 2006 2005
Cument Liabllities
Lin 2 of credit $ 2,790,000 1,482,500
Cument portion of long-term debt . 1,470,000
. Current installments of obligations under capital leases 203,065 198,057
Accounts payabis 6,487,732 5,157,099
Due to third-party payors 5,789,456 4,676,289
Medicaid assessment tax payable 1,093,881 -
Acc ueq interest 544 59,759
Accrued expenses and other 1,864,306 1,744 203
Total current liabilities 18,208,984 14,787 907
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 9, 11, and 15)
Obligarions Under Capital Leases, net of curment installmenté 393,125 603,022
Professional Liability 5,248,096 4,767,000
Total liabilities 23,850,205 20,157,929
Net Assets (Deficit)
Unrestricted {deficit):
Bosr;l designated 54,809 1,742,478
Uncesignated : 6,702,912 2,756,218
(6,648,103) (1,013,740
Tempoorarily restricted 1,605,891 1,804,556
Total net assets [deficit) (5,042,212 790,855

18,807,993 20.948 785
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION -

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Years Ended March 31, 2006 and 2005

T 2006 2005
Revenues:
Net patient service revenue § 35,484,142 43,556,828
Medicaid hospital assessment revenue 6,479,794 3,937,043
Other operating revenue 866,534 915,420
Net assets reteased from restrictions, used for operations 198,703 122,006
46,009,175 48,531,297
Experses:
Salzries and wapes 17,903,469 17,703,454
Employee benefits 3,076,563 2,566,428
Physlclan compensation 2,877,760 2,287,769
Mecicaid hospital assessment tax 1,520,709 1,533,768
Foo1i 361,705 357,815
UtilHes 5,485 850,921
Repairs and maintenance 649,081 586,707
Insurance 1,554,021 2917718
Supglies and other 12,614,637 11,314,230
interest 254,137 205,947
Depreciation and amortization 707,415 821,455
Provisian for uncollectible accounts 10,123,249 9,650,817
52,358,231 51,247,029
Operating (loss) (6,349,056) (2,715,732
Nonogerafing income:
Investment income 20,783 149,630
Other, net 447,691 127,984
468,474 277,624
(Deficlency) of revenues over expenses $§ (5330,582) (2,438,108)
(Continued}
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS {DEFICIT) (Cantinued)
Years Ended March 31, 2006 and 2005

2006 _ 2005
Unvestricted Net Assets (Defici)
(Deficiency) of revenues over expenses $ (5880,582) {2.438,108)
Netchange in unrealized gains and losses on assets limited as to use . (142,945
Costributions for property and equipment 246 19 -
(Decrease) in unrestricted net assets {deficit). (5,634,363) {2,581,053)
Chanje in Temporarily Restricted Net Assets (Deficit)
Contributions ) - 1,030,444
Net assets released from restrictions [198,705) {122,006)
Increase {decrease) In temporarily restricted net
assets (deficit) (1€8,705) 908,438
(Decrease) In net assets (deficit) {5,833,068) (1,672,615)
Net assets, beginning of the year 791,856 2463471

Net assets (deficit), end of the year $ g,gg%g 2) § 790 856

Ses Notes to Financial Statements,
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION i
|
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 |
T 2006 2005 n
H
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
(Decrease) in net assets $ (5833,068) 3 (1672615) |
Adjustments o reconcile (decrease) in net assels -
to 1et cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 707,845 821,455 ]
Provision for uncollectible accounts 10,123,249 9,630,817
Net change in unrealized gains and losses on assets limited as to use ' . 142,945 K
Contributions for property and equipment [246,219) -
Increase (decrease) from changes in: X
Patient accounts receivable (9,237,065) (10,834,167) =
Due fromio third-party payors ' 5,385,778 1441,111
Meadicaid assassment recelvable and payable (4,290,283) . K
Pledges and other recsivables . 231,585 151,485
|nventorles (20,473) 42,780 E
Prepaid expenses 210,736 97,372 _
Other long-term assets (61,110) (37,848)
Accounts payable 1,129,990 465,209 m
Accrued interest (59,215} (11,600)
Accrued expenses and other 120,103 (153,567) K
Professional liability 481,096 261,001
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (1,357 ,481) 404,388
Cash Flows from Investing Activities E
Purchases of assets limited as to use and investments (2,957,434) (4,236,448) K
Proceeds from assets limited as 1o use and investments 4,700,849 5,325,972
Contribufions received for praperty and equipment 246,219 - [ &
Purchass of property and equipment, net ‘ - {917,625 - (1,054,257) ,
Net cash provided by {used in) investing activities 1,072,008 (864,733) E
Cash Flows from Financing Activities E
Net moceeds from line of credit 1,307,500 1,482,500 E
Repayment of long-term debt {1,470,000) (305,000)
Repayment of capital lease abligations (204,889) (246,718) E
Net cash provided by {used in) financing activities (367,389) 930,782 ¢
Net Increase (decrease) in cash ' (652,861) 470,437 e
Cash, teginning of year 1,054,914 581,477 B
Cash, end of year $ 399,053 ¢ 1,051,914 E
(continuad) E
G
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
Years Ended March 31, 2006 and 2005

2006

2005

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Fiow Information
Cash paid for interest

Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Investing and Financing Activities
Praperty and equipment financed with capital leases
Purthase of equipment in accounts payable

See Motes to Financial Statements.

13352 §

180,643

217,547

324,762
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION
Notes to Financlal Statements

Note 1, Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Pollcies

Nature of emanization: Roseland Community Hospital Association (Hospital), a not-for-proft corporalion, operates a
short-term general acute care community hospital and various clinics. The Hospital provides general heaith care -
services to residents within its geographic service area, including inpatient, outpatient, emergency room, physician,
ard other services.

A summary of significant accounting policles foliows:

Use of estimates: The preparstion of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and fiabilities at the date
of the financial staternents and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reparting period. Actual
results couid differ from those estimates. The use of estimates and assumptions in the preparation of the
accompanying financial statemants Is primanly related to the determination of the patient receivahies and settiements
with third-party payors and the accrual for professionat iablity. Due to uncertainties inherent n the estimstion and
assumption process, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in these estimates and assumptions in the near
term would be material fo the financial statsments,

Cash' Throughout the year, the Hospital may have amounts on deposit with financial institutions in excess of those
insured by the FDIC. Management does not beleve this presents a significant risk to the Hospital,

Patient accounts receivable, provision for uncollectible accounts and due fromdAo third- rs: The coilection of
receivables from third-party payors and patients is the Hospitaf's pimary source of cash for operations and is critical
to s operating performance. The primary collection risks relate to uninsured patient accounts and patient aceounts
for which the primary insurance payor has paid, bt patient respansibility amounts (deductibles and co-payments}
remain outstanding. Patient receivables, where a third-party payor is responsible for paying the amount, are caried
at a net amount determined by the original charge for the service provided, less an estimate made for contractual

ad] istments or discounts provided to third-party payors.

Patient receivables due directly from the patients are carried &t the original charge for the servics provided less
amaunts covered by third-party payors and less an estimated allowance for doubtful receivables. Management
estimates this allowance based on the aging of its accounts receivable and ts historical collection experienco for
each payor type. Recoveries of receivables previously written off are recorded as a reduction of bad debt expense
when received.

The past-due status of receivables is determined on a case-by-case basis depending on the payor responsible.
Interest is generally not charged on past-due accounts.

Receivables or payables related tn estimated setilements on various payor cantracts, primarily Medicare, are
reparted as amounts due from o to third-party payors. Significant changes in payor mix, business office operations,
economic conditions or trends in federal and state govemmental health care coverage could affect the Hospital's
coflection of accounts receivable, cash flows and results of operations,

Inventories: Inventories of supplies are stated at the lower of cost (firstdn, first-out) or market.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Hote 1. Natura of Organization and Summery of Significant Accounting Pollcies (Continued)

liavestments and assets imited ag to use: Assets limited as to use consist primarily of investment securities,
Investments in maney market accounts are measured at fair value which approximates cost, Investments in equity
sscurities with readily datemmingble fair values and debt securities ane carmied at fair value. The fair values ara
estimated based on quated market prices for those or similar investments. The change in net unrealized gains and
lasses in the value of investments is recognized as a change In net assets. Assats limited as 1o use include assets
st askde by the Board of Directors (Board) for capital improvements and other purposes, aver which the Board
retains control and may at its discretion subsequently use for other Purposes; assats held by a trustes to be used in
accordance with requirements of 2 bond indenture agreement; and assets held by a frustes to be used in accardance
with the requirements of a self-insurance trust agreement. Assets limited as to use that are required for obligations
chessified as current liabillties are reported in current assets. Assets limited as o use are dassified as noncurment
assets to the extent they are ot expected to be expended to satisfy obligations classified as current liabifities,

investments are regularly evaluated for impaimment. The Hospital considers factors affecting the investee, factors
affecting the industry the investee operates within, and general debt and equity market trands. The Hospital
considers the length of ime an investment's fair value has been below camying value, the near-term prospects for
re sovery o caying vaiue, and the intent and ability ta hold the investment unt maturity or market recavery is
malized. If and when a determination is made that 2 degline in fair value below the cost basis Is other than
temporary, the related investment is written down 1o its estimated fair value and included in excass of revenues over
expenses as a component of investment income.

Property and equipment: Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided over the estimated
us=ful [ife of each ¢lass of depreciable asset and is computed on the straight-ling methad. Leased equipment under
capital leases is amortized over the shorter of the iease tsrm or estimated usefu! life. The estimated usefis lives of
depreciable property and equipment range from 5 to 25 years for land improvements, 10 to 40 years for buildings,
and 3 to 20 years for furniture and fixtures. Amortization expense on assels acquired under capital leases is Included
viit.1 depreciation expense on owned assets. Interest cost incurred on borrowed funds during the period of
construction of capital assets is capitalized as a component of the cast of acquiring thasa assets.

Gifts of long-lived assets, such as land, buildings, or equipment, are reported as unrestricted support and ars
inchided in the Income or loss from operations uniess expficit donor stiputations specify how the donated assets must
be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are used and gifts of cash or
other assets that must be used i acquire long-lived assets are reported as restrictad Support. Absent explicit donor
stipulations about how long those long-fived assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported
when the donated or acquired long-lived assets ara placad in service.

Profesgional liability: The provision for professional liabitity includes estimates of the ultimate costs for known claims
as #ell as claims incurred but not reported. The provision is actuanially determinad,
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Notes to Financlal Statements

Note 1. Nature of Organtzation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policles {Continued)

ficiency of reve over nses: The statements of operations and changes in net assets inchide deficiency of
revenues over expenses which represents results of aperations. Changes in unrestricted net assets, which are
exchuded from the results of operations, consistent with industry practke, include unrealized gains and losses on
Investments and contributions of long-ived assets (including assets acquired using contributions which by donar
restriction were to be used for the purpose of acquiring such assets).

Jperating lass: The statements of operations and changes in net assets include an operating loss. Changes in
unrestricted net assets, which are excluded from operating loss, include investment income and other revenue, net,
which management views as outside of nomal actlvity.

Charity care: The Hospital provides care to patients who meset certain criteria under its charity care policy without
charge or at amounts less than established rates. Because the Hospital does not pursue collection of amounts
Cetermined to qualify as charity care, they are nol reported as revenue.

Easis of presentation: The Hospital may classify its net assets into three categories, which are unrestricted,
temporarily restricted, and pemanently resticted.

Unrestricted net assets are reflective of revénues and expenses associated with the principal operating activities of
te Hospital and are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily restricted net assats are those whose use by the Hospital has been limited by donors to a specific ims
Ppericd or purpose.

Pemanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donors to be maintained In perpetuity.

onor-restricted gifts: Unconditional promises ta give cash and other assets o the Hospital are reported at fair value
at the date the promise is received. Conditional promises to give and Indication of intentions to give are reported at
fai* value at the date the gift Is received. The gifts are reported as efther tsmporarily of parmanentfy restricted
support if they are recejved with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction
expires, that is, when a stipuiated time restriction ends Or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricied

-10-
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Notes to Financlal Statements

Mota 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Tax-exempt status: The Hospital is a not-for-profit corporation as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Intemal
Revenue Code (IRC) and exempt from Federal income texes on retated income pursuant to Section 501(a} of the
Code.

Reclassifications: Certain 2005 amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2006 presentation, These
reclassifications had no effect on the 2005 change in net assats,

Note 2, Continuing Operations

the realization of assets and discharge of fiabilifies in the ondinary course of business. The Hospital expeffenced an
operating loss during the year ended March 31, 2006, and is experiencing difficulty in generating sufficient cash flow
to meet its obligations and sustain its operaticns.

The Hospital engaged a consulting firm and began a process to reduce expenses, restructure operations and recruit
new management team members,

Th2 Hospital's ability to sustain its operations is dependent upon its ability to (a) generate cash flow to meet #s
obfgations an a timely basis, (b), obtain additionat financing (as may be required), and (c) ultimatety attain profitability,
Management believes they will bs able to sustain future opsraticns through actions completed and planned, including
buknat imited to the foilowing:

Govemance and Management:

«  The Hospital achieved Healthcare Facilities Accreditation Program (HFAP) accreditation. The Hospital has
implemented a cutture of improved clinical quality and patiem safety that not only satisfied the concems of

patient outcomes throughout the entire continuum of cars. :

* InJuly 2006, the Hospital hired a permanent CEO, lan McFadden, who brings a weatth of knowledge to the
Hospital. Mr. McFadden, a heaith care executive from Brentwood, Kentucky, was selected as the Hospital's
new CEQ after a six-manih nationwide search. He previously served as the senior consultant for FTl
Cambio Health Solutions and the Chief Operating Cfficer of the Alameda County Medical Center, 2 588-bed
teaching hospital in Oakland, Califonia.

» Management secured an affordable health insurance plan option and other benefit ernhancements for
employees to imprave employee satisfaction and to assist in empioyee recruiting and retaention efforts.

Operational:
*  The Hospitaf bormowed $3,000,000 in the first quarter of fiscal year 2096 ang paid it off from the proceeds

from the Medicaid Hospital Assessment Program.

-11-
/2&




May 29 2008 10:23AM HP LASERJET FAX p.15

ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION
Notes to Financlal Statemants

Note 2. Continuing Operations (Continued)

» Added key service lines to provide essential health care services to the community including pediatric
services, occupational and physical therapy, infectious disease services, orthopedic services and Magnetic
Resonance Imaging (MRI) capabilities, and Sleep Study.

¢ Due to the re-instatement of the HFAP accreditation, the Hospital was able to again service existing and
new managed care contracts that the Hospital s cumently serving as a Participating Provider.

o  The Hospital entered into an arrengement with Chicago Family Health Centar, which has opened a
comprehensive community health center on the 2™ fioor of the Hospital. This clinic offers greater access to
affordabla, comprehensive primary heatth care to residents of the Rosefand, Riverdale, Aubum-Gresham
and West Puilman communities. All services are provided without regard fo ability to pay and a sliding
scale fee program is avaliable for uninsured patients.

Management believes that these and other actions wil favorably affect operating results; however, there can be no
assurances that these actions will be sufficient to ensure the Hospital's long-term future,

The Hospital's existence is substantiaily dapandant on its ability to consistently improve operations, generate positive
cash flows and to increase its working capital. Because the long-term funding of the Stats of lllinois Medicaid
program, including the Medleaid Hospital Assessment Program, and the outcome of management's efforts to
consistently achieve accreditation, profitable operations and positive cash flows and Increased working capital cannot
be determined, no adjustments to the accompanying financk! statements relating to this uncertainty have been
meade, '

Note 3, Net Patient Service Revenue and Subsequent Event

The Hospite! has agreements with third-party payers which provide for reimbursement to the Haspital at amounts
drferent from its established rates. Contractual adjustments under third-party reimbursement programs represent the
diference between the Hospital's billings at list price and the amounts reimbursed by Medicare, Medicaid, Blue
Cross, and certain other third-party payors; and any differences between estimated third-party reimbursement
settiements for prior years and subsequent final settiemsnts. Conftractual adjustments under third-party

re‘ mbursement programs are accnied on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and are
atfusted in future periods as final settlements are determined. A summary of the basis of reimbursement with major

third-party payors follows:

Medicare: The Hospital is paid for inpatient acute care and outpatient care services rendared to Medicare program
beneficiaries under prospectively determined rates per discharge (Prospective Payment Systems), These rates vary
according to a patient classification system that s based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. Inpatient non-
acute services and defined capital and medical education costs related to Medicare beneficiaries are paid based
upon a cost reimbursement method, established fee screens, or a combination thereof. The Hospital's classification
of patients under Prospective Payment Systems and the appropriateness of the patient's admissions are subject to
vaidation reviews, The Hospital Is mimbursed for cost mimbursable items at tentative rates with final settlement
dedermined after submission of annual reimbursement reports by the Hospital and audits by the Medicare fiscal
imemmediary,
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Bote 3, Net Patient Service Revenue and Subsequent Event (Continued)

Medicald: The Hosphtal is reimbursed at pru_spectively determined rates for each Medicaid mpatent discharge.

B.ue Cross: The Hospital also participates as a provider of health care sefvices under a refmbursement agresment
w.th Blue Cross. The provisions of this agresment stipulate that services wii be reimbursed at a tentative
reimbursement rate and that final refmburssment for these services is determined after the submission of an annual
ccst report by the Hospital and a review by Blue Cross.

anaged Ca niza!ich - The Hospital has aiso entered into reimbursement agresments with certain
commercial Insurance carriers, health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations. The basis
for payment under these agresments includes discounts from established charges and prospectively determined per
diem rates. :

A summary of gross and net patient service revenues for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2005 follows:

2006 2008
Grass patient servica revenue $ 93291209 § 88,625,649
Physician service revenue 546,707 682,431

Less provision for contractual adjustments under third-party
rzimbursement programs, charity care, and other discounts and
allowances (55,373.864) (55,751,252

Net patient service revenue g 38464 142 $ 43556828

Laws and regulations goveming the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to intemretation. As
a result, there is at least a reasonabie possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material amount in the near

review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penatties, and exclusion from the
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION
Nates to Financial Statements

Note 4. Goncentrations of Cradit Risk

The Hospilal grants credit without collateral to-its-patients, most of whom are local residents and are insured under
third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors at March 31, 2006 and

2005 was as follows:
2006 2005
Medicare 16 % 12 %
Medicaid 30 25
Managed care 10 14
Patients 40 45
Other 4 4
% 10

Note 5. Assets Limited as to Use and Investments

The composition of assets limited as 1o use at March 31, 2006 and 2005 is as follows:

2006 2005
Under bord indentura agreements - held by trustee, ‘
U.S. govemment obligations $ 54 $ 1,465,593
Under malpractice furding agreement - held by trustee,
U.S. govemment obligations 15,417 3,067
Bw Board for capital improvements: i
Maney market 3,785 118,204
U.S. govemment obligations 50,480 158,591
Total assets fimited or restricted as 1o use 70,226 1,745,545

Less current portion 344 - 1,465,593

$ 63682 _§ 279,952

Inwsstments consist of a money market account of $76,165 and $144,261 at March 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Investment securifies, in general, are expased to various risks, such as intefest rate, credit, and overall markat
voistility. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is reasonably possible that changes
in Ehe value of investment securities will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the
amounts reported in the balance sheet.

-14-
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION
Notes to Financlal Statements

Note 6, Charity Care (Unaudited)

The Hospital maintains records to identify and monitor the leve! of charity care it provides. For the years ended
Farch 31, 2006 and 2005, the Hospital provided approxmatsly $3,951,000 and $3,050,000 of charity care,
respectively, based on charges foregone for services randered. _

Mote 7. Property and Equipment

A summary of property and equipment at March 31, 2006 and 2005 s as follows:

2006 2005
Land $ 80477 3 380477
Land improvements ' 403,347 400667
Buildings , 6,328,127 5,981,354
Euilding improvements 5,054,454 5,054,454
Major movable and fixed equipment . 10,671,553 10,512,374
Construction-in-progress » 3,557,975 2,968,339
Euipment under capital lease 2420506 2,420,506

28,816,439 27,718,171
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization,
Including amortization of equipment under capital
lease of $1,908,785 in 2006 and $1,696,365 in 2005 21,499,275 20,791,860

$ 7317 164 $ 6,926,311

Construction-in-progress at March 31, 2006 and 2005 consisted primarily of costs incured for various construction
and renovation projects. The most significant project in process at March 31, 2006 is the expansion of the Haspital's
emergency room from 4,500 square feet to 10,500 square feet. The smergency room project is currently on hold
pending funding from future grants and ather sources of funding. The estimated cast to complete the emergency
room project is approximately $3.9 million as of March 31, 2005,
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Rote 8. Note Payable, Long-Term Debt, Pledged Assets and Subsequent Event

The Hospital has a revolving line-of-credit agreement with a bank which provides for tofa borrowings of up to
$2,800,000. The line is collatarafized by substantially all assets of the Hospital. The agresment axpires June 30,
2008 and has been subsequently extended through June 30, 2007, It has since been paid. Interest is paid monthly
at the prime rate (7.75% at March 31, 2006) plus 1%. The outstanding balance on this fine was $2,780,000 and
$1,482,500 at March 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

A summary of long-term debt at March 31, 2006 and 2005 follows:

2008 2005
First Morigage Revenues Refunding and improvemant Bonds,
Series 1978, paid in full : B - $ 1,470,000
Less current portion ‘ _ - 1,470,000

Long-term portion $ A -

Note 9. Lease Obligations

The Hospital has entered into capital lsase obligations at varying rates of interest from 7% 12%, which are
callateralized by leased equipment,

Future minimum lease commitments under capital leases for equipment as of March 31, 2006 are as shown below:

Years Ending March 31,

2007 3 245,899

2008 245,899

2009 - 129,251

2010 51,502

Tctal required minimum lease payments 672,551
Less amount representing interest 76,361
Net present value of minimum lease payments 596,150
Less cument portion 203,065
Long-term portion $ 303,125

-16-
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 8. Lease Obligations (Continued)

T e Hospital also leases equipment under operating leasas, Minimum annual renta! payments are as follows:
Years Ending March 31

2007 ' $ 41,575
2008 3,855

5 45530

Rent expense for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 was approximately $605,000 and $544,000,
respechvely.

Note 10.  Pension Plan

The Hospita! has a voluntary defined contribution pension plan (Plan) covering substartially all employees who work
at least 1,000 hours annually, are over age 21, and have at least two years of service. Hospital contribution
requirements under the terms of the Plan are computed at 2% of an eligible employee's first $20,000 of salary and
4% of salary eamed thereafter. Eligible employees may elect to contribute 2% of their first $20,000 of salary and
4.7% of salary eamed thereatter, thereby increasing the Hospital's contribution requirements to 3% and €%,
respectively. Beginning in 1897, participants may also elect to make additional voluntary contributions which are not
matched by the Hospital. Pension expense under the terms of the plan of approximately $217,000 and $404,000 for
the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, is included in employee benefits axpensa in the
accompanying financial statements. Pension expense is funded on a current basis.

Ncte 11, Self-lnsurance - Accrued Professional Liability and Genera! Liability

The Hospital is invoived in litigation under various matters arising in the ordinary course of business. Substantially ali
cls=ms related to incidents occurring prior to 1976 are covered by commercial insurance. Effective for the periods
since 1976 the Hospital has adopted a seff-insurance program for professional (medical maipractice) and general
liadility claims. For various years in this ime frame, the Hospital has aiso obtained excess medical malpractice
insurance coverage from commercial insurance carriers. '

In connection with its self-insurance program, the Hespital engaged the services of a professional consuftant for
acluanal evaluations of selt-insured funding requirements and designated attomeys to handle legal matters relating
to professional and general liabiiity claims. The Hospital also established a trust fund with an independent trust agent
for the proper administration and protection of the assets designated for professional and general liabfity claims.

Under the trust agresment, the trust fund assets are only to be used for the self-insurance program and are not
available for the general opemations of the Haspital.

The uttimate cost of asserted and unasserted seff-insured claims identified under the Hospital's incident reporting
systam, as well as estimates of claims incurmed but not reported, are acerued based on estimaticn methodologies
thar incorporate the Hospital's past experience, as well as other ¢considerations including the nature of each cfaim or
incident and relevant trend factors. Accrued professional and general liability claim losses have been discounted at
6% for 2006 and 2005. The portion of the acerual for astimated professional and general liabifity claims expected to
be paid within one year of the balance sheet datss is not readily determinable, and therefore, the entire accrua
balance is classified as a noncurment fiability. :

-17-
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Note11.  Self-insurance — Accrued Professional Liability and General Llabliity (Continued)

Self-insured professional and general liability expense of approximately $1,185,000 in 2006 and $1,440,000 In 2005

bas been Included with insurance axpense in the accompanying statements of operafions and changes in net assets.

At this time, there Is no excess Insurance coverage.
Hote12  Investment in Umited Partnership and Subsequent Event

The Hospital contributed $150,000 during 1992 as a limited partner in the Morgan Park Professicnal Centre Limited
Partnership. As a limited partner, the Hospital's liability s limited to the amount of its contributions and it has no
responsibility for managing parnership affairs, Partnership operations began in July 1992. The Hespital's
investment, which is accounted for on the equity method, is included in other lang-term assets in the accompanying
Ealance sheets. The Hospital's proportionate share of the partnership's operations ingluded net incame of
approximately $81,000 in 2006 and $50,500 in 2005, which Is included with other nonoperating income in the
accompanying statements of operations and changes in net assets. Subsequent to March 31, 2008, the client sold
thair investment in Morgan Park for a gain of approximately $510,000. At December 31, 2005, total assets
(consisting primarily of property and equipment) of the Morgan Park Professional Centre Limited Partnership were
appraximately $1.4 million and total liabilites (primanily long-term debt} were approximately $1.2 million. For the year
e1ded December 31, 2005, revenues and axpenses were approximately $305,000 and $236,000, respectively.

Note13.  Temporarily and Permanentiy Restricted Net Assets

As of March 31, 2008, temporarily restricted net assets consist of $1,545,081 for emefgency om renovations;
$11,159 for bioterrorism; $10,906 for capital campaign fundraising costs; and, $38,745 for other programs, As of
MBrch 31, 2005, temporarily restricted net assets consist of $1,545,081 for Emergency room renovations; $117,410
for bicterrorism; .$98,705 for capital campaign fundraising costs; and, $43,400 for other programs,

There afe no permanently restricted net assets as of March 31, 2006 and 2005.
Note 14.  Funclional Expenses

The Hospital provides general heatth care services to residents within its geographic location, Expenses related to
providing thesa services were as follows for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005:

2006 2005
Health care services § 37314166 $ 36522245
General and administrative 15,044,065 14,724,784

$ 52358231 3 51,247,029
B e —— T

Cemtain costs have been allocated among the heatth care services and general and administrative expanses,
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Medicare Reimbursement

net patient service revenue

kaid Reimbursement:

Medicaid Hospital
rekating to the period throug

recorded,

Public Aid routinely conduct

528,066,000 and $30,639,000, respectively, of g
beneficiaries. Changes in Medicare reimburse
(CMS) implementation of the provisions of

$30,797,000 and $30,586,000, res

Litigation: The Hospital is invoived in litig
coanse!, management estimates that th
financial position or results of operations.

Mote 15.  Commitments and Contingencles

For the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005, the Hospital recognized approximately

ross patient service revenues from services provided to Medicare
ment as a result of the Centers for Medicare and Medicald Services'
future Medicare legislation may have an adverse effect on the Hospital's

For the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005, the Hospital recognized appraximately

pectively, of gross patient ser_viae revenues provided to Medicaid patients. Due to

ent Program: As described in Note 3, CMS approved State legisiation for the Program

hMay 2008. Receipt and timing of such

acions of the State. No receivable or payable for amounts applicabl

future Program payments is dependent on future
e to perlods after March 31, 2006 have been

ation arising in the nonmal course of businss. in consultation with legal
ese matters will be resolved without matarial adverse effect on the Hospital's

Rmy!atog Investigation: The U.S. Department of Justics, uthe( federal agencies and the illinois Department of
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certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Direclors
Rosaland Community Hospital Association
Chicago, lllinals

We have audited the financial statements of Roseland Community Hospitat Association (the Hospital} as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2006, and have issued our report thereon dated April 30, 2007, We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable
to-financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standands, issued by the Comptroller General of the United

States.

Internai Contro! Qver Flna_nclal Reporting

In planning and performing cur audit, we considered the Hospital's intemal controt over financial reporting in order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financiai statements and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting. However, we noted certain matters invoiving the
intzmal contro! over financial reporting and its operation that wa consider to be repartable conditions. Reportable
co.xditions involve matters coming to our attantion relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the
intermal control over financial reporting that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the Hospital's ability to initiate,
record, process, and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the financial statements.
Renartable corditions are described in the accompanying Schedule of findings and responses as items 06-1 through
05-6.

A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the intemal conirol
components does not reduce to a relatively low lave! the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts
tha would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may oceur and not be detected within a
timeiy period by employees In the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the
intemal contral over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controf that might be
reportabie conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also
considered to be material weaknesses. However, of he reportable conditions described above, we consider items
06-1, 08-3, 064, 06-5, and 06-6 to be material weaknesses. '

Cormpliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Hospital's financial statements are free of materiai
misctatement, we performed tests of its compilance with certain provisions of iaws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncempiiance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of the financiaf
statement amounts. Hawever, providing an apinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audl’, and accordingly, we do rot express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required fo be reported under Govemment Auditing Standards and which
are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as items 06-6 and 06-7.

MeGlearey & Pullen, LLP 15 4 menher &m of REM Infematigna! -
an afiiaton of seperete and incependent lagal entittes.
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V/e noted certain matters that we reported to management of Rosaland Community Hospita! Assoclation in a
saparate letter dated April 30, 2007.

This report is Intended for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management, and federal and state
awarding agencies and is not intanded to be"and shoulkd not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

/%.%47 S ol | ¢p

R ackford, Illinois
Aprit 30, 2007
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Roseland Community Hospital Assaclation

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
Year Ended March 31, 2006

05-1: Billing and Accounts Recelvable

Ciiteria or Specific Requirement A good system of controls inchudes proper intemal review and monitoring of patient
billings and reiated documentation and a proper system for estimating contractual allowances at time of billing.

Condition and Context The Hospftal does not perform intemal reviews of patient bills to ensure that proper
quantities and levels of service are entered into the bilking system. The Hospital also records contractual allowances
at the time of payment versus determining an estimate for the contractuai allowance and recording at time of billing.
The contractual allowance would then be adjusted if needed at time of payment for any difference between the
estimate and the actual contractual allowance. :

Effect: Multiple arrors were discovered in patient accounts receivable related to improper quantitias and level of
gervice entered into the bifling system. These errors resulted in improper reimbursement for accounts receivable.,

Cause: Limitations in the software package provents contractual adjustments from being taken at the time of billing.

Rzcommendation: We recommend that the Audit Committee, Compliance Committee and management develop a
peocess (o intemaily audit patient bills, both inpatient and outpatient, on a routine basis, to ensure that such emrors do
not ocour in the future. In practice, many heatth systems and hospitals utiiize nurse auditors in this role. We also
recommend that the Hospital incorporate quantity and doflar value threshoids into their billing software in ordar to
detect emors prior lo processing daily receivables batehes. Also the procedure for recording contractual allowancss
should be revised so that the Hospital's system records the estimated contractual allowances at the fime of billing
with subsequent adjustment at the time of payment.

M3anagement's Response: Management will explore the feasibifity of acquiring contract management software that
wil afiord RCH with the ability to caiculate contractual adjustments at the time of billing, In the interim, a system io
review patient bills, particulary high dellar accounts, will be estabiished.

0€-2: Payroli

Criteria or Specific Requirement: A good intemal control structure invoives maintaining proper segregation of duties
In the payroil process as well as proper approvals of time worked by employees. In additian, exit intarview should be
performed in order to detect any other payroll related issues.

Condition and Context: Our review of controls in payroll revealed a few issues. We observed that the payroll
coardinator s responsible for printing and disiributing the payrofl checks without the check sequence being
ac<ounted for by a person independent of payroll. We also observed that departmental managers are not required to
review the fime of employees in their department. Payroll fs required to be locked down prior to processing, which is
do e by either the departmental manager or the payroll coordinator, and there is no way to retroactively determine
whether or not the manager locked down the time-sheet. Last, we noted exit interviews are not conducted for
terninated employees prior to departure.

This situation is mitigated to some extent by several procadures, which involve payroll reviews by members of
management. First, department managers review labor distribution reports, which list total hours by employee and
total dellars, for each payroll. Second, beginning in January 2005, a *change in status report” was reviewed each
pay peniod. Payroll expense is also reviewed monthly by the Hospital's chisf financial officer and Finance
Committee,

Effect: As a result of this lack of controls, It is possible that the Hospital could pay a fictitious employee or improperty
pay a curent employee.

-22-
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Roseland Community Hospital Association

‘SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
Year Ended March 31, 2006

05-2: Payroil (Continued)

Cause; Addttional control procedures are nécessary, inchuding the distribution of depariment expense reparts
containing line tem detad comparing actual labor expensas to budget.

Fecommendation: We recommend the following: 1.) someone outside of the payroll department distributz payroil
checks; 2.) all employes time shests are reviewed by their respective department manager prior to processing; and
3) exit Interviews be conducted for all terminated empioyees.

Management’s Response: Management will explore the feasibility of software applications designed to generate
monthly reporting of labor costs in detail in order for Department Managers to effectively review labor costs,

03-3: Approval of Expense Reports

. Ciitenia or Specific Requirement: A praper approval process should be maintained for expense reports to ensure

improper expenses are not paid by the Hospital.

Condition and Context: During our testing of expense reports, we noted that the chief executive officer is reviewing
and approving the expenses submitted by the chiaf financial officer, both of which are contracted from the

m 2nagemsnt consulting firm. :

Effect The current approval process increases the risk of inappropriate expenses being pald by the Hospital.

Czuse: Lack of an independent raview procsss leading to the processing of expenses could result in Inappropriate
expenses being processed.

m' mendation: We recommand that all invoices from the management consuiling firm for expense
reimbursement be submitted with supporting receipts and reviewed by the Board of Directors for approval.

emenf's R : The Hospital will employ the CEO and CFO beginning in 2006.The revisw of the process
of approving expenditures will lead to a recommendation from management for additional controls.

© 06~8: Flxed Asset Tracking

Crizeria or Specific Requirement: To ensure proper accounting for fixed assets, a formal fixed asset tagging and
tracking system should be maintained.

Condition and Context: We observed that Roseland does not currently tag and track fixed assets,
Effect: This minimizes the Hospital's ability to identify assets that are impaired, put out of sefvice, or disposed of.
Cause: Specific tagging of fixed assets wil require an investment of time.

Recommendation: We recommend that the Hospital consider the use of a formal fixed asset tagging and tracking
system,
Management's Resoonse: A in depth review of the amount of resources hecessary to accomplish the tagging of

fixed assets will be performed by management leading to a recommendation on the methodology far increased
contol.
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Roseland Cummunﬂy' Hospital Assoclation

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
Year Ended March 31, 2006

&6-5: Chief Financial Officer Position

iteria or i uire A proper financial management structure in a Hospital s important to ensurg
complex accounting and financial Issues are handied propsrly and that a high levet of decision making and review is
maintained.

Condition and Context: The chief financial officer position was vacant during the year and the Administrative
Lirector, Controls and Accountability, was performing the duties of the chief financial officer.

Effect: The Hospital could have issues in many arsas such as finance accounting, personnet and morale without
having the proper management structure in place.

Cause: Possible poor fiscal management, including inaccurate reporting of the financial condition of the hospital.
Recommendation: We recommend that a chief financial officer be hired as soon as possible.
Management’s Responsa: Subsequent to the period under audtt a chief financial officer was hired.

08&-6: Unclalmed Property

niteria or Specific Requirement: In orderto compfy with state law, the Hospital is required to remit any unclaimed
property in a timely manner.

Condition and Context The Hospital had approximaiefy $240,000 of unclaimed property at June 30, 2006 that
should have been remitted to the State of lllingis.

Efect: The fallure to submit unclaimed property in a timely manner coutd potentially result in penattles and fees
assessed at the Hospital.

Cause: Establishment of insffective protocal o Identify and report unclaimed property.

Recammendation: We recommend that the Hospital submit ali unclalimed property to the stata of Hinals in a timely
manner.

Management's Response: Management will review this issue and devsiop the protocal to property identify and report
unciaimed property.

06-7: Timely Submission of Reports

Critaria or Specific Requirement in order to comply with the requirement of the Offica of Management and Budget
(OMB) compltance supplements related to reporting, the Hospitad must submit their audit feports within 180 days of
yea-engd, :

Cordition and Context: Due 1o delays experienced during the audt, the audit reports were not completed In a timely
manner.

Effect The audit reports were not submitted within 180 days of year-end.
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08-7: Timely Submissfaon of Reports (Continued)

Cause: Due to delays experenced in collecting provider tax monies from the State of lllinois, the Hespital was
unable fo pay audit fees in a timely manner resulting in a defay in the performance of the audit.

Recommendation: We recommend that management ensure proper funds are available to ensure the audit report s
compieted and submitted in a timely manner.

Management’s Response: Increased emphasis will be placed on payment to satisfy regulatory reparting
requirements.
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McGladrey & Pullen

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Roseland Community Hospital Association
Chicago, lllinois

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Roseland Community Hospital Association as of March 31,
2008 and 2007, and the related statements of operations and changes in net assets {deficit) and cash flows for the
years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Hospital's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Roseland Community Hospital Association as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, and the results of its operations and
changes in net assets (deficit) and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Amernica.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that Roseland Community Hospital
Association will continue as a going concem. As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, Roseland
Community Hospital has experienced difficulty in generating sufficient cash flow to meet its obligations and sustain
operations, and is dependent on the lllinois Medicaid Hospital Assessment Program in order to generate operating
income. This raises substantial doubt about Roseland Community Hospital Association’s ability to continue as a
going concem. Management's plans in regard to these matters are aiso described in Note 2. The financial
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

%@W//&Z&w_/ L

Rockford, lllinois
November 7, 2008

McGladrey & Pulten, LLP is a member firm of RSM Intemational - / C/ S
an affiliation of separate and independent legal entiies.




ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

BALANCE SHEETS
March 31, 2008 and 2007
ASSETS 2008 2007
Cument Assets
Cash $ 1,176,859 $ 492 872
Assets limited as fo use 313,046 1,000,384
Patient accounts receivable, net of allowances for uncollectible accounts
of approximately $15,606,000 in 2008 and $22,608,000 in 2007 4,956,400 5,338,743
Due from third-party payors 1,273,805 191,200
Medicaid assessment revenue receivable 5,384,166 5,384,164
Pledges and other receivables 186,782 238,340
Inventories 224,160 - 156,744
Prepaid expenses 87,191 64,911
Total current assets 13,602,409 12,867,358
Assets limited as to use, net of amounts required to meet current obligations 3,618,196 2,955,632
Cash restricted by grantor for property and equipment 619,947 672,417
Investments - 48,342
Property and equipment, net 8,591,487 7,055,181
Other long-term assets 137,505 94,609
$ 26569544 § 23693539

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) 2008 2007
Current Liabilities
Line of credit - $ 1,154,500
Current installments of obligations under capital leases 121,513 221,493
Accounts payable 9,913,330 7,402,839
Due to third-party payors 6,189,514 7,824,315
Medicaid assessment tax payable 1,093,881 1,093,881
Accrued expenses and other - 2,482,327 2,256,552
Total current liabilities 19,800,565 19,953,686
Obligations Under Capital Leases, net of current instaliments 50,119 171,632
Professional Liability - 5,828,780 5,940,986
Total fiabilities 25,679,464 26,066,304
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 3, 9, 10, 11, and 15)
Net Assets (Deficit)
Unrestricted (deficit) {1,791,084) (5,051,185)
Temporarily restricted 2,681,164 2,678,420
Total net assets (deficit) 890,080 {2,372,765)
26569544 §$ 23693532




ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Years Ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

2008 _ 2007

Revenues:
Net patient service revenue $ 50965143 § 48,262,376
Medicaid hospital assessment revenue 7,178,889 7,178,885
Other operating revenue 843,005 713,401
Net assets released from restrictions, used for operations - 11,159
58,987,037 56,165,821

Expenses:
Salaries and wages 17,810,401 17,871,937
Employee benefits 3,268,832 3,482,396
Physician compensation 2,838,750 2,296,748
Medicaid hospital assessment fax 1,458,508 1,458,508
Food ' 364,683 316,555
Utilities 798,379 787,253
Repairs and maintenance 375,803 393,103
Insurance 635,140 1,431,998
Supplies and other 13,240,295 11,217,242
Interest 191,766 376,432
Depreciation and amortization 697,764 654,646
Provision for uncollectible accounts 14,146,939 15,062,133
55,827,260 55,348,921
Operating income 3,159,777 816,900

Nonoperating income:

Investment income 7,287 2,533
Gain on sale of property and equipment - 116,212
Other, net 93,037 661,273
100,324 780,018
Excess of revenues over expenses $ 3,260,101 $ 1,596,918

{Continued)




ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT} (Continued)

Years Ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

2008 2007
Unrestricted Net Assets
Excess of revenues over expenses $ 3,260,101 & 1,596,918
increase in unrestricted net assets 3,260,101 1,596,918
Change in Temporarnily Restricted Net Assets
Contributions and grant 2,744 1,083,688
Net assets released from restnctions - (11,159)
Increase in temporarily restricted net assets 2,744 1,072,529
Increase in net assets 3,262,845 2.660,447
Net deficit, beginning of the year (2,372,765) {5,042,212)
Net assets (deficit), end of the year $ 890,080 §  (2,372.765)

See Notes to Financial Statements.




ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

2008 2007

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Increase in net assets $ 3,262,845 § 2,669,447
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets (deficit)
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 697,764 654,646
Provision for uncollectible accounts 14,146,939 15,062,133
Gain on sale of property and equipment - (116,212)
Contributions for property and equipment - (1,083,688)
Increase (decrease) from changes in:
Patient accounts receivable (13,764,596) (15,534,549)
Due from/to third-party payors (2,717,406) 1,910,866
Pledges and other receivables 51,556 (72,821)
Inventories (67,416) 5,802
Prepaid expenses (22,280} 28,384
Other long-term assets (42,896) 111,718
Accounts payahle 2,197,345 935,207
Accrued expenses and other _ 225,775 391,702
Professional liability (112,206} 692,890
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,855,424 5,655,525
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of assets limited as to use and investments (12,904,491) (11,518,782
Proceeds from assets limited as to use and investments 12,977,607 7,660,815
Contributions received for property and equipment - 1,083,688
(Increase) decrease in cash restricted by grantor for property
and equipment 52,470 (672,417)
Proceeds from sale of long-term asset - 316,138
Purchase of property and equipment, net (1,921,024) {592,589)
Net cash (used in) investing activities {1,795,438) (3,723,147)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net payments on line of credit (1,154,506) {1,635,494)
Repayment of capital lease obligations {221,493) (203,065)
Net cash (used in} financing activities (1,375,999) {1,838,559)
Net increase in cash 683,987 93,619
Cash, beginning of year 492872 399,053
Cash, end of year $ 1,176,859 _§$ 492,872

{Continued)
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
Years Ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

2008 2007
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid for interest $ 191,766 § 376,613
Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Investing and Financing Activities
Purchase of equipment in accounts payable 313,046 -

See Notes to Financial Statements.




ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSQCIATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of organization: Roseland Community Hospital Association (Hospital), a not-for-profit corporation, operates a
short-term general acute care community hospital and various clinics. The Hospital provides general health care
services to residents within its geographic service area, including inpatient, outpatient, emergency room, physician,
and other services.

A summary of significant accounting policies follows:

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabifities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. The use of estimates and assumptions in the preparation of the
accompanying financial statements is primarily related to the determination of the patient receivables and setllements
with third-party payors and the accrual for professional liabifity. Due to uncertainties inherent in the estimation and
assumption process, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in these estimates and assumptions in the near -
term would be matenal to the financial statements.

Cash: Throughout the year, the Hospital may have amounts on deposit with financial institutions in excess of those
insured by the FDIC. This concentration exposes the Hospital to custodial credit risk.

Patient accounts receivable, provision for uncollectible accounts and due from/to third-party payors: The collection of
receivables from third-party payors and patients is the Hospital's primary source of cash for operations and is critical
to its operating performance. The primary collection risks relate to uninsured patient accounts and patient accounts
for which the primary insurance payor has paid, but patient responsibility amounts {deductibles and co-payments)
remain outstanding. Patient receivables, where a third-party payor is responsible for paying the amount, are carried
at a net amount determined by the original charge for the service provided, less an estimate made for contractual
adjustments or discounts provided to third-party payors.

Patient receivables due directly from the patients are carded at the original charge for the service provided less
amounts covered by third-party payors and less an estimated allowance for doubtful receivables. Management
estimates this allowance based on the aging of its accounts receivable and its historical collection experience for
gach payor type. Recoveries of receivables previously written off are recorded as a reduction of bad debt expense
when received.

The past-due status of receivables is determined on a case-by-case basis depending on the payor responsible.
Interest is generally not charged on past-due accounts.

Receivables or payables related to estimated settlements on various payor contracts, primarily Medicare and Blue
Cross, are reported as amounts due from or to third-party payors. Significant changes in payor mix, business office
operations, economic conditions or trends in federal and state govemmental health care coverage could affect the
Hospital's collection of accounts receivable, cash flows and results of operations.

Inventories: Inventonies of supplies are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market.




ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Investments and assets limited as to use; Assets limited as to use consist primarily of investment secunities.
Investments in money market accounts are measured at fair value which approximates cost. Investments in equity
securities with readily determinable fair values and debt securities are carried at fair value. The fair values are
estimated based on quoted market prices for those or similar investments. The change in net unrealized gains and
losses in the value of investments is recognized as a change in net assets. Assets limited as to use include assets
set aside by the Board of Directors (Board) for capital improvements and other purposes, over which the Board
retains control and may at its discretion subsequently use for other purposes; assets held by a trustee to be used in
accordance with requirements of a bond indenture agreement; assets held by a trustee to be used in accordance
with the requirements of a line-of-credit agreement; and assets held by a trustee to be used in accordance with the
requirements of a self-insurance trust agreement. Assets limited as to use that are required for obligations classified
as current liabilities are reported in current assets. Assets limited as to use are classified as noncurrent assets to the
extent they are not expected to be expended to satisfy obligations classified as current liabilities.

Investments are reqularly evaluated for impairment. The Hospital considers factors affecting the investee, factors
affecting the industry the investee operates within, and general debt and equity market trends. The Hospital
considers the length of time an investment's fair value has been below carrying value, the near-term prospects for
recovery to camying value, and the intent and abiity to hold the investment until maturity or market recovery is
realized. If and when a determination is made that a decline in fair value below the cost basis is other than
temporary, the related investment is written down to its estimated fair value and included in excess of revenues over
expenses as a component of investment income.

Assets limited as to use consist of investments set aside by the Board for capital impravements. Assets limited as to
use also include a nominal amount (less than $1,000) designated by the Board and held by trustee for professional
liability ctaims.

Property and equipment; Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided over the estimated
useful life of each class of depreciable asset and is computed on the straight-line method. Leased equipment under
capital leases is amortized over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives of
depreciable property and equipment range from 5 to 25 years for fand improvements, 10 to 40 years for buildings,
and 3 to 20 years for fumiture and fixtures. Amortization expense on assets acquired under capital leases is included
with depreciation expense on owned assets. Interest cost incurred on borrowed funds during the period of
construction of capital assets is capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring those assets.

Gifts of long-lived assets, such as land, buildings, or equipment, are reported as unrestricted support and are
included in the income or loss from operations unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must
be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are used and gifts of cash or
other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor
stipulations about how long those long-fived assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported
when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.

Other long-term assets: Included in this balance is a certificate of deposit which has been pledged in supportofa
loan for the benefit of Hospitat Laundry Services, LLC, a shared taundry service company that provides services to
the Hospital. The balance of the certificate of deposit at March 31, 2008 and 2007 was approximately $107,000 and
$64,000, respectively.

Professional liability: The provision for professional liability includes estimates of the ultimate costs for known claims
as well as claims incurred but not reported. The provision is actuanially determined. The Hospital is completely self-
insured for all claims.




ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Net patient service revenue: Agreements with third-party payors provide for payments to the Hospital at amounts
different from its established rates. Payment arrangements include prospectively determined rates-per-discharge,
discounted charges, or cost reimbursement methodologies. Net patient service revenues are reported at the
estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services rendered, including
estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive
adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future
periods, as final settlements are determined.

Excess of revenues over expenses: The statements of operations and changes in net assets include excess of
revenues over expenses which represents results of operations. Changes in unrestricted net assets, which are
excluded from the results of operations, consistent with industry practice, include unrealized gains and losses on
investments and contributions of long-lived assets {including assets acquired using contributions which by donor
restriction were to be used for the purpose of acquiring such assets).

Operating income; The statements of operations and changes in net assets inciude operating income. Changes in
unrestricted net assets, which are excluded from operating income, include investment income, gains and losses
from sales of long-term assets, and other revenue, net, which management views as outside of normal activity.

Charity care; The Hospital provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy without
charge or at amounts less than established rates. Because the Hospital does not pursue collection of amounts
determined to qualify as chanity care, they are not reported as revenue.

Basis of presentation: The Hospital may classify its net assets into three categories, which are unrestricted,
temporarily restricted, and permanently restricted.

Unrestricted net assets are reflective of revenues and expenses associated with the principal operating activities of
the Hospital and are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by the Hospital has been limited by donors to a specific time
period or purpose.

Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donors to be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor-restricted gifts; Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to the Hospital are reported at fair value
at the date the promise is received. Conditional promises to give and indications of an intention to give are reported
at fair value at the date the gift is received. The gifts are reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted
support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted
net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reporied in the statements of changes in net assets as net
assets released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as
received are reported as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying financial statements.

Tax-exempt status: The Hospital is a not-for-profit corporation as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code (IRC) and is exempt from Federal income taxes on related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the
Code.
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2. Continuing Operations

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a going concem, which contemplates
the realization of assets and discharge of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. The Hospital has expenenced
difficulty in generating sufficient cash flow to meet its obligations and sustain its operations in recent years. The
Hospital is also dependent on the lllinois Medicaid Hospital Assessment Program in order to generate operating
income.

The Hospital engaged a consulting firm in a prior year and began a process to reduce expenses, restructure
operations and recruit new management team members. The effects of these changes continue.

The Hospital's ability to sustain its operations is dependent upon its ability to (a) generate cash flow to meet its
obligations on a timely basis, (b} obtain additiona! financing (as may be required), and (¢) maintain profitability.
Management befieves they will be able to sustain future operations through actions completed and planned, including
but not limited to the following:

e« Management has implemented several cost saving meastires as well as revenue cycle initiatives that are
designed to improve cash flow. Best of Breed benchmarks have been utilized to compare actual Hospital
results and provide management with a tool to evaluate processes.

« Management continues to modify operations with an improved emphasis on the registration process. The
Hospital has increased efforts to determine Medicaid eligibility of patients; making certain that Medical
Assistance applications are completed timely for all eligible patients. Increased resources have been
devoted to this process.

« The Hospital has received net funding of approximately $5,720,000 from the illinois Medicaid Hospital
Assessment Program in both fiscal years 2007 and 2008. These funds will provide the Hospital with the
ability to continue modification of operations and additional funding for capita! projects.

Management believes that these and other actions will favorably affect operating results; however, there can be no
assurances that these actions will be sufficient to ensure the Hospital's long-term future.

The Hospital's existence is substantially dependent on its ability to consistently improve operations, generate positive
cash flows and increase its working capital. Because the long-term funding of the State of lllinois Medicaid program,
including the Medicaid Hospital Assessment Program, and the outcome of management's efforts to consistently
achieve accreditation, profitable operations, positive cash flows and increased working capital cannot be determined,
no adjustments to the accompanying financial statements relating fo this uncertainty have been made.




ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3. Net Patient Service Revenue and Subsequent Event

The Hospital has agreements with third-party payors which provide for reimbursement to the Hospital at amounts
different from its established rates. Contractual adjustments under third-party reimbursement programs represent the
difference between the Hospital's billings at list price and the amounts reimbursed by Medicare, Medicaid, Blue
Cross, and certain other third-party payors; and any differences between estimated third-party reimbursement
seltiements for prior years and subsequent final settlements. Contractual adjustments under third-party
reimbursement programs are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the refated services are rendered and are
adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined. A summary of the basis of reimbursement with major
third-party payors follows:

Medicare: The Hospital is paid for inpatient acute care and outpatient care services rendered to Medicare program
beneficiaries under prospectively determined rates per discharge (Prospective Payment Systems). These rates vary
according to a patient classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. Inpatient non-
acute services and defined capital and medical education costs related to Medicare beneficiaries are paid based
upon a cost reimbursement method, established fee screens, or a combination thereof. The Hospital's classification
of patients under Prospective Payment Systems and the appropriateness of the patient’s admissions are subject to
validation reviews. The Hospital is reimbursed for cost reimbursable items at tentative rates with final settlement
determined after submission of annual reimbursement reports by the Hospital and audits by the Medicare fiscal
intermediary.

Fiscal year 2008 represented the first of a three-year phase-in period for implementation of revised Medicare
Diagnosis Related Group (DRG) reimbursement system. This new payment methodology makes meaningful
refinements to the current CMS classification system to increase recognition of severity of iliness. However, there
vill be a limited impact on payments in specific DRGs because of the simultaneous implementation of incremental
reforms for cost-based and severity-based payments. Management has not determined the reimbursement impact of
this change in reimbursement for the Hospital.

Medicaid: The Hospital is reimbursed at prospectively determined rates for each Medicaid inpatient discharge.
Qutpatient services are reimbursed based on established fee screens. For inpatient acute care services, payment
rates vary according to a patient classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. The
prospectively determined rates are not subject to retroactive adjustment. The Hospital also receives incremental
Medicaid reimbursement for specific programs and services at the discretion of the State of Iliinois Medicaid
"Program. Medicaid reimbursement may be subject to periodic adjustment, as well as to changes in existing payment
levels and rates, based on the amount of funding available to the Medicaid program.

On November 6, 2007, the Hospital received a letter from the Office of inspector General (OIG) related to an integnty
audit covering the period of May 1, 2004 through April 30, 2006. Because of the significant number of records
requested that were not produced during the audit, the OIG identified overpayments of approximately $1,786,000 and
issued a waming to the Hospital. iIf subsequent audits show no material decrease in the number of missing records,
further sanctions including, but not limited to suspension or exclusion from the State of lllinois Medicaid Program are
possible.

Subsequent to March 31, 2008, the Hospital received a letter from OIG reducing the overpayment amount to
$1,099,290. The amount was reduced because the Hospital was able to provide some of the documents that could
not be obtained during the original audit. The Hospital is in the process of appealing the findings of the audit and has
included the reduced liability in the due to third-party payor line in the balance sheet.
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3. Net Patient Service Revenue and Subsequent Event (Continued)

Blue Cross: The Hospital also participates as a provider of health care services under a reimbursement agreement
with Blue Cross. The provisions of this agreement stipulate that services will be reimbursed at a tentative
reimbursement rate and that fina! reimbursement for these services is determined after the submission of an annual
cost report by the Hospita! and a review by Blue Cross.

Managed care organizations; The Hospital has also entered into reimbursement agreements with certain commercial
insurance carriers, health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations. The basis for payment
under these agreements includes discounts from established charges and prospectively determined per diem rates.

A summary of gross and net patient service revenues for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 follows:

2008 2007
Gross patient service revenue $ 149462507 $ 134,223248
Physician service revenue 302,730 N7, 741
Less provision for contractual adjustments under third-party ‘
reimbursement programs, charity care, and other discounts
and allowances _ (98,800,094) (86,278,613)
Net patient service revenue $ 50965143 $ 48262376

Estimates for cost report setlements and contractual allowances can differ from actual reimbursements based on the
results of subsequent reviews and cost report audits. Changes in third-party valuation allowances that relate to prior
years are reported in revenue in excess of expenses in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets. The impact of such items on revenue in excess of expenses was an increase of approximately $315,000 and
a decrease of approximately $971,000 for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Laws and regulations goveming the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to interpretation. As
a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a materiat amount in the
near-term. The Hospital's management believes that it is in compliance with all applicable laws and regufations and
is not aware of any pending or threatened investigations involving allegations of potential wrongdoing. While no such
regulatory inquiries have been made, compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future govemment
review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties, and exclusion from the
Medicare and Medicaid programs.

During fiscal year 2007, the Medicaid Hospital Assessment Program (Program) was renewed for the period from
August 2005 to June 30, 2008. Under the Program, the Hospital received additional Medicaid reimbursement from
the State of lllinois (State) and paid a related assessment. Total reimbursement revenue recognized by the Hospital
refated to this Program amounted to $7,178,889 and $7,178,885 during the Hospital's years ended March 31, 2008
and 2007, respectively. Total assessments incummed by the Hospital related to this program amounted to $1,458,508
in each of the Hospital's years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007. Continuation of this program beyond June 2008 is
uncertain at this ime. The Illinois Heatthcare and Family Services, Hiinois Hospital Association, and Association of
Safety Net Hospitals have worked together to develop a replacement Program which has been approved by the
Nlinois legislature and is subject to approval by the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). Final
approval of the Program is expected by management of the Corporation, but cannot be assured.
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 4. Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Hospital grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents and are insured under
third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors at March 31, 2008 and
2007 was as follows:

2008 2007
Medicare 12 % 13 %
Medicaid 46 28
Managed care . 14 14
Patients 26 42
Other 2 3
100 % 100 %

Note 5. Assets Limited as to Use and Investments

The composition of assets limited as to use at March 31, 2008 and 2007 is as follows:

2008 2007

Under bond indenture agreements - held by trustee,

U.S. government obligations $ 402 § 384
Under line-of-credit agreement - held by trustee,

Money market - 1,000,000
Under malpractice funding agreement - held by trustee,

U.S. govemment obligations 3 234
By Board for capital improvements: :

Money market 2,958,230 2,902 832

U.S. govemment obligations 54,575 52,566

Certificate of deposit 918,032 -

Total assets limited or restricted as to use $ 39831242 § 3,956,016

Investments consist of a money market account of $48,342 at March 31, 2007.




ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 6. Charity Care {Unaudited)

The Hospital maintains records to identify and monitor the levei of charity care it provides. For the years ended
March 31, 2008 and 2007, the Hospital provided approximately $3,600,000 and $3,646,000 of charity care,
respectively, based on charges foregone for services rendered.

Note 7. Property and Equipment and Subsequent Event

A summary of property and equipment at March 31, 2008 and 2007 is as follows:

2008 2007

Land $ 380477 % 380,477
Land improvements 403,347 403,347
Buildings 6,252,501 5,980,389
Building improvements 6,526,154 5,050,423
Major movable and fixed equipment 11,077,383 10,757,585
Construction-in-progress 4,207,583 4,041,154
Equipment under capital lease 2,420,506 2,420,506

31,267,951 29,033,881

Less accumutated depreciation and amortization,
including amortization of equipment under capital
lease of $2,277,500 in 2008 and $2,093,143 in 2007 22,676,464 21,978,700
$ 8591487 § 7055181

Construction-in-progress at March 31, 2008 and 2007 consisted primarily of costs incurred for various construction
and renovation projects. The most significant project in process at March 31, 2008 is the expansion of the Hospital's
emergency room from 4,500 square feet to 15,000 square feet. The estimated cost to complete the emergency room
project is approximately $3,875,000 as of March 31, 2008.

Subsequent to March 31, 2008, the Hospital entered into a $5,000,000 note payable with interest at a rate of prime
minus 0.5%. The State of linois has pledged $5,000,000 of its assets as collateral against the note and the Hospitai
has pledged $400,000 of its assets as collateral against the note. This loan is to be used for the Hospital's
emergency room project. Principal is to be paid monthly, beginning in April 2009. Interest is to be paid monthly
beginning in July 2008. The note matures in June 2011.

Note 8. Note Payable, Pledged Assets and Subsequent Event

The Hospital had a revolving line-of-credit agreement with a bank which provided for total borrowings of up to
$2.800,000. The line was collateralized by substantially ali assets of the Hospital. The agreement expired June 30,
2007. The outstanding balance on this line was $1,154,506 at March 31, 2007. The Hospital paid off the line-of-
credit during the year ended March 31, 2008.

Subsequent to March 31, 2008, the Hospital entered into a $913,204 bank note payable with interest at a rate of
prime. The Hospital has pledged $913,204 of its assets as collateral against the note. The principal balance is due
in June 2009 and interest payments are due monthly, starting in June 2008.
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ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 9. Lease Obligations

The Hospital has entered into capital lease obligations at varying rates of interest from 7% to 12%, which are
collateralized by leased equipment.

Future minimum lease commitments under capital leases for equipment as of March 31, 2008 are as shown below:

“Years Ending March 31,

2009 $ 129,251

2010 51,501

Total required minimum lease payments 180,752
Less amount representing interest 9,120
Net present value of minimum lease payments 171,632
Less current portion 121,513
Long-term portion $ 50,119

The Hospital also leases equipment under operating leases. Minimum annual rental payments are $57,500 for 2009.

Rent expense for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 was approximately $622,000 and $554,000,
respectively. : :

Note 10, Pension Plan

The Hospital has a voluntary defined contribution pension pian (Plan) covering substantially all employees who work
at least 1,000 hours annually, are over age 21, and have at least two years of service. Hospital contribution
requirements under the terms of the Plan are computed at 2% of an eligible employee's first $20,000 of salary and
4% of salary eamed thereafter. Eligible employees may elect to contribute 2% of their first $20,000 of salary and
4.7% of salary eamed thereafter, thereby increasing the Hospital's contribution requirements to 3% and 6%,
respectively. Beginning in 1997, participants may also elect to make additional voluntary contributions which are not
matched by the Hospital. Pension expense under the terms of the ptan of approximately $312,000 and $750,000 for
the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, is included in employee benefits expense in the
accompanying financial statements. An underfunding in the amount of approximately $425,000 and $400,000,
including interest and penalties, for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, is included in accrued
expenses and employee benefits expense in the accompanying financial statements.




ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 11.  Self-Insurance - Accrued Professional Liability and General Liability

The Hospital is involved in litigation under various matters arising i the ordinary course of business. Substantially all
claims related to incidents occurring prior to 1976 are covered by commercial insurance. Effective for the periods
since 1976 the Hospital has adopted a self-insurance program for professional {medical malpractice) and general
fiability claims. For various years in this ime frame, the Hospital has also obtained excess medical malpractice
insurance coverage from commercial insurance carriers.

In connection with its self-insurance program, the Hospital engaged the services of a professional consultant for
actuarial evaluations of self-insured funding requirements and designated attomeys to handle legal matters relating
to professional and general liability claims. The Hospital also established a trust fund with an independent trust agent
for the proper administration and protection of the assets designated for professional and general liability claims.

Under the trust agreement, the trust fund assets are only to be used for the self-insurance program and are not
available for the general operations of the Hospital.

The ultimate cost of asserted and unasserted self-insured claims identified under the Hospital's incident reporting
system, as well as estimates of claims incurred but not reported, are accrued based on estimation methodologies
that incorporate the Hospital's past experience, as well as other considerations including the nature of each ciaim or
incident and relevant trend factors. Accrued professional and general liability claim losses have been discounted at
6% for 2008 and 2007. The portion of the accrual for estimated professional and general liability claims expected to
he paid within one year of the balance sheet date is not readity determinable and, therefore, the entire accrual
amount is classified as a noncurrent liability. An accrual for possible losses attributable to incidents that may have
occurred, but that have not been identified under the incident reporting system is included in this liability. If accrued
malpractice losses had not been discounted, the estimated liability would be approximately $752,000 and $834,000
higher than the amounts recorded in the balance sheets as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Self-insured professional and general liability expense of approximately $244,000 in 2008 and $1,082,000 in 2007
has been included with insurance expense in the accompanying statements of operations and changes in net assets.

At this time, there is no excess insurance coverage.

Note12.  Investment in Limited Partnership

The Hospital contributed $150,000 during 1982 as a limited partner in the Morgan Park Professional Centre Limited
Partnership. As a limited partner, the Hospital's liability is limited to the amount of its confributions and it has no
responsibility for managing partnership affairs. Partnership operations began in July 1992. The Hospital's
investment, which is accounted for on the equity method, is included in other long-term assets in the accompanying
balance sheets. During 2007, the Hospital sofd its investment in Morgan Park. The Hospital's proportionate share of
the partnership's operations included net income of approximately $207,000 in 2007, which is included with other
nonoperating income in the accompanying statements of operations and changes in net assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 13.  Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

As of March 31, 2008, temporanly restricted net assets consisted of $2,625,081 for emergency room renovations;
$17,338 for capital campaign fundraising costs; and, $38,745 for other programs. As of March 31, 2007, temporarily
restricted net assets consisted of $2,625,081 for emergency room renovations; $14,594 for capital campaign
fundraising costs; and, $38,745 for other programs.

There are no permanently restricted net assets as of March 31, 2008 and 2007.
Note 14.  Functional Expenses

The Hospital provides general health care services to residents within its geographic location. Expenses related to
providing these services were as follows for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007:

2008 2007
Health care services $ 39637355 § 39,297,734
General and administrative 16,189,905 16,051,187

§ 55827260 $ 55348921

Certain costs have been allocated among the health care services and general and administrative expenses. There
were no fundraising expenses.

Note 15.  Commitments and Contingencies

Medicaid reimbursement: Due to the Hospital's relatively high Medicaid patient volume, the Hospital receives
additional reimbursement ($7,887,718 in 2008 and $9,102,848 in 2007} in the form of critical hospital adjustment
payments (CHAP), direct hospital adjustments (DHA) and safety net access payments {SNAP}, the majority of which
is provided by the Ilfinois Medicaid program. The amount of additional reimbursement from the lllinois Medicaid
program which will be made to hospitals in the future is uncertain, and future legistative changes to reimbursements
provided to hospitals could have a material adverse effect on the Hospital's operating results.

Litigation; The Hospital is involved in litigation arising in the normal course of business. With the exception of one
matter, in consultation with legal counsel, management estimates that these matters will be resolved without material
adverse effect on the Hospital's financial position or results of operations. The Hospital is the defendant in a matter
for which the jury verdict was overturned by the judge. A new trial on damages has been ordered by the judge.
Legal counsel and management estimate that the probable outcome of this matter will be matenal to the Hospital's
financial position. This matter was considered by the actuary and management in determining the professional
liability accrual. Legal counse! has estimated that this case will settle for an amount between $1,000,000 and
$2,000,000.

Contingency: Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset
Retirement Obligations {FIN 47) clarified when an entity is required to recognize a liability for a conditional asset
retirement obligation. The Hospital has a legal obligation to remove hazardous matenials from its facilities in the
event the facilities are renovated or replaced. Such hazardous materials include asbestos. Management believes
there is an indeterminate settlement date for the asset retirement obligations because of the rarige of time over which
the Hospital may settle the obligation is unknown. However, management does not believe that the estimate of the
liability related to these assets retirement obligations is a material amount at March 31, 2008 and 2007.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 15. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Regulatory environment inciuding fraud and abuse matters: The health care industry is subject to numerous laws
and regulations of federal, state, and local governments. These laws and regulations include, but are not necessarily
limited to, matters such as licensure, accreditation, govemment health care program participation requirements,
reimbursement for patient services, and Medicare and Medicaid fraud and abuse. Govenment activity continues
with respect to investigations and allegations conceming possible violations of fraud and abuse statutes and
regulations by health care providers. Violations of these laws and regulations could result in expulsion from
govemment health care programs together with the imposition of significant fines and penatties, as well as significant
repayments for patient services previously billed. Management believes that the Hospital is in compliance with fraud
and abuse, as well as other applicable govemment laws and regufations. While no regulatory inquiries have been
made, compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject fo future government review and interpretation, as
well as regulatory actions unknown or unasserted at this time. '

filinois Hospital Uninsured Patient Discount Act: On May 30, 2008, the lllinois legislature passed a bill titled the
“Hospital Uninsured Patient Discount Act” {the Act). This Act will require hospitals to provide certain mandated
discounts from charges to the uninsured in llinois. Charges are to be discounted to 135% of cost. Furthermore, a
hospital may not collect more than 25% of an uninsured family's gross income in any one year. The Act became law
on September 23, 2008 and the-provisions applying to hospitals begin on April 11, 2009. The Hospital is in the
process of determining the impact of this Act and is developing procedures in order to implement the Act.

CMS RAC program; Congress passed the Medicare Modemization Act in 2003, which among other things
established a demonstration of the Medicare Recovery Audit Contractor (RAC) program. The RAC's identified and
corecled a significant amount of improper overpayments to providers. In 2006, Congress passed the Tax Relief and
Heaith Care Act of 2006 which authonized the expansion of the RAC program to all 50 states. CMS is in the process
of rolling out this program nationally. As such, the Hospital may be subject to such an audit at some time in the
future.

Note16.  Pending Adoptions of New Accounting Principles

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board {*FASB") issued Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), Accounting
for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an Interpretation of SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. FIN 48 clarifies
the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with
FASB Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. FIN 48 prescribes a comprehensive mode! for recognizing,
measuring, presenting and disclosing in the financial statements tax posilions taken or expected to be taken on a tax
retumn. In February 2008, the FASB delayed the effective date of FIN 48 for certain nonpubfic companies to annual
financial statements ending June 30, 2009. The adoption of FIN 48 is not expected to have a material impact on the
Hospital's financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

in September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. The
requirements of SAFS No. 157 are effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP} No. 157-2, Effective Date of
FASB Statement No. 157. FSP 157-2 defers the effective date of SFAS No. 157 to fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years, for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities,
except for those items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis.
The Hospital has not fully evaluated the impact, if any, of adoption of this pronouncement on its financial statements.
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Roseland

Community Hospital

80 yeane of seruice and owr commilment conlinued...

October &, 2009

Mr. Michael Constantino

Illinois Health Services and Facilities Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street

Springfield, IL 62761

RE: Roseland Community Hospital

Dear Mr. Constantino;

The undersigned, being authorized representatives of the applicant, hereby attest that the selected
form of debt financing the project will be at the lowest net cost available or if a more costly form of
financing is selected that form will be more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment
privileges, no required mortgage, access to additional debt, term, financing costs and other factors.

b fgrids [ Lenirs™”
Signature U i

—_—— 0
/%W:’aw/ - 7? ORI

Printed Name Printed Name

./ggsypéwr” £CeEC
Printed Title SN, Printed Title

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
}ss
COUNTY OF ﬂ-a é——j‘

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO
befogp me this_ KBl day of

., 2009.

SN\

Notary Public’ /Cy

. N ATTACHVENT 76
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PROJECTED OPERATING COSTS

FY 2011
Salaries: $1,766,644
Benefits: 353,239
Supplies: 112,320
Total Operating Costs: $2,232,203
Patient Days: 9,360

Operating Costs per Day: ~ § 238.48

EFFECT OF THE PROJECT ON CAPITAL COSTS

FY 2011
| Interest Exp.: $ 368,300
Depreciation: 1,480,000
Total Capital Costs: $ 1,848,300
Equivalent Patient Days: 44,571
Capital costs per Equivalent
Patient Days: $ 4146

ATTACHMENT 76




SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT

Roseland Community Hospital is the Safety Net Hospital for the Roseland
Community on the far south side of Chicago located at 45 W. 11 1" Street. As you will
note, we have received support from other safety net hospitals in our area, e.g., Mercy,
Jackson Park, St. James, as well as Provident Hospital of the Cook County Health

System.

For the past three fiscal years, Roseland has provided the following charity care
and received the following Medicaid reimbursement:

Information from Public Health Annual Survey

006 2007 2008
Charity Care Cost: $ 1,093,406 $ 1,080,000 $ 990,000
Medicaid Revenue: $30,796,632 $20,316,319 $26,460,655

ATTACHMENT 77



After paginating the entire, completed application, indicate in the chart below, the page numbers
for the attachments included as part of the project's application for permit:

INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS
ATTACHMENT
NO. PAGES
1 | Applicant Identification
2 | Site Ownership
3 | Organizational Relationships (Organizational Chart) Certificate 23
of Good Standing Etc.
4 | Flood Plain Requirements 24
5 | Historic Preservation Act Requirements 25
6 | Description of Project
7 | Project and Sources of Funds ltemization
8 | Cost Space Requirements
9 | Discontinuation
10 | Background of the Applicant 26-32
11 | Purpose of the Project
12 | Alternatives to the Project 33
13 | Size of the Project 34
14 | Project Service Utilization 35-36

15 | Unfinished or Shell Space

16 | Assurances for Unfinished/Shell Space
17 | Master Design Project

18 | Mergers, Consolidations and Acquisitions

Categories of Service:
19 | Planning Area Need 37-68
20 | Service Demand — Establishment of Category of Service 69-88
21 | Service Demand — Expansion of Existing Category of Service
22 | Service Accessibility — Service Restrictions

23 | Unnecessary Duplication/Maldistribution 89-91
24 | Category of Service Modernization

25 | Staffing Availability 92
26 | Assurances 93

Service Specific:

27 | Comprehensive Physical Rehabilitation
28 | Neonatal Intensive Care

29 | Open Heart Surgery

30 | Cardiac Catheterization

31 | In-Center Hemodialysis

32 | Non-Hospital Based Ambulatary Surgery

General Long Term Care:

33 | Planning Area Need

34 | Service to Planning Area Residents

35 | Service Demand-Establishment of Category of Service
36 | Service Demand-Expansion of Existing Category of Service
37 | Service Accessibility

38 | Description of Continuum of Care

39 | Components

40 | Documentation

41 | Description of Defined Population to be Served

42 | Documentation of Need

43 | Documentation Related to Cited Problems

44 | Unnecessary Duplication of Service

45 | Maldistribution
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46

Impact of Project on Other Area Providers

47

Deteriorated Facilities

48

Documentation

49

Utilization

50

Staffing Availability

51

Facility Size

52

Community Related Functions

53

Zoning

54

Assurances

Service Specific {continued...):

55

Specialized Long Term Care

56

Selected Organ Transplantation

57

Kidney Transplantation

58

Subacute Care Hospital Model

59

Post Surgical Recovery Care Center

60

Children’s Community-Based Health Care Center

61

Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center

Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service:

62

Need Determination - Establishment

63

Service Demand

64

Referrals from Inpatient Base

65

Physician Referrals

66

Historical Referrals to Other Providers

67

Population Incidence

68
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69
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70
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71

Necessary Expansion

72

Utilization- Major Medical Equipment

73

Utilization-Service or Facility

FEC:

74

Freestanding Emergency Center Medical Services
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75

Financial Feasibility
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